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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CL Educate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group'), and its associate, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, associate. the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group, its associate, as at 31 March 2023, and their consolidated "profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont'd)

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to note 67 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements which describes
the Group has receivables from Nalanda Foundation amounting to Rs. 525 lacs which are long
outstanding. Based on legal advice and its assessment of the merits of the case, the management is of
the view that the aforesaid receivable balances are good and recoverable and hence, no adjustment is
required in the accompanying Consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2023.

We draw attention to Note 65 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in respect of the
scheme of arrangement (‘the Scheme’) under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 between
the Company and five of its wholly-owned Indian subsidiaries approved by the National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide its order date 7 February 2022, as per which such wholly-owned
subsidiaries have been merged with the Company, on a going concern basis, with effect from the
appointed date of 1 April 2019. The Scheme was given effect in the previous year ending 31 March
2022 in accordance with the accounting treatment prescribed therein which however was not in
accordance with Appendix C to the Indian Accounting Standard 103, Business Combinations prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules and interpretations issued
thereunder, as further described in the aforesaid note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue recognition (Refer note 2(C)(ii) and note
36 to the accompanying consolidate financial
statements)

We refer to the Group significant accounting policies | Our audit procedures included but not limited to

in note 2(ii) and the revenue related disclosures in | the following:

note 36 of the consolidate financial statements. - Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's

. ) . revenue recaognition policy in accordance with
Revenue is a key business driver for the Group and Ind AS 115 including evaluation of

is therefore, susceptible to misstatement. Revenue management's assessment of performance
recognition under Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from | gpjigations determined to be satisfied over time
contracts with customers’ (Ind AS 115') involves | and related method of measuring progress
significant judgement by the management in | towards complete satisfaction of such
identification of separate performance obligations in | Performance obligation.

contracts with multiple performance obligations,
determining transaction price in view of discount
offered to the

« Understood, evaluated and tested the design
and operating of key controls implemented by
the Group in relation to revenue recognition
including discounts.
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Key audit matter (Cont’d)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition (Refer note 2(C) (ii) and note
36 to the accompanying consolidate financial
statements) (cont’d)

customers, allocation of such transaction price to the
identified performance obligations to ensure the
revenue is booked in carrect periods.

Further, for fixed price contracts, the management
assesses progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligations basis the pattern in which
content is delivered by the Company to the students
over a period of time.

Considering significant volume of transactions, the
materiality of amount involved, and significant
judgements involved as mentioned above, revenue
recognition was identified as a key audit matter for the
current year audit.

Loss allowance for Trade Receivables (Refer Note
2(C)(ii) and Note 16 to the accompanying
consolidate financial statements)

The Group Company has trade receivables of Rs.
6,963.49 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (net of
impairment of Rs 271.61 Lakhs). During the year, the
Company has recorded a charge of Rs 465.80 L.akhs
towards bad debts for such trade receivables.

Owing to the nature of the operations of the Company
and related customer profiles, the Company has
significant long standing trade receivable balances, for
which appropriate loss allowance is required to be
created for expected credit losses using simplified
approach in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 109, Financial Instruments, measuring the loss
allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

For the purpose of expected credit loss assessment of
trade receivables, significant judgement is required by
the management to estimate the timing and amount of
realisation of these receivables basis the past history,
customer profiles and consideration of other internal
and external sources of information.

Considering the significant judgement involved,
increased complexities due to the pandemic, high
estimation uncertainty and materiality of the amounts
involved, we have identified loss allowance on trade
receivables as a key audit matter for the current year
audit.

Performed test of details for samples selected from
revenue transactions recorded during the year by
inspecting invoices and other related supporting
documents for such samples. Further, evaluated
whether the revenue has been recognized as per
the accounting policy of the Company for such
samples.

» Performed substantive analytical procedures
which included review of price, quantity and
discounts variances and month to- month ratio
analysis based on customer level and company
level data.

* Tested the calculations related to discounts and
other supporting documents on a test check basis.

+ Evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of relevant
disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Ind AS 115

Our audit procedures included but not limited
to the following:

« Understanding the trade receivables process with
regards to valuation and testing of controls
designed and implemented by the management.

+ Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables at year end on sample basis.

+ Obtained a list of outstanding trade receivables,
identified significant long outstanding receivables,
and discussed plan of recovery with the
management.

« Circularized balance confirmations to a sample of
nonstudent trade receivables and reviewed the
reconciling items, if any.

« Verified the appropriateness of judgements
regarding provision for trade receivables and
assess as to whether these provisions were
calculated in accordance with the Group's
provisioning policies.

+ Tested subsequent settlement of trade
receivables after the balance sheet date on a
sample basis, as applicable.

« Verified the related disclosures made in notes to
the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109.

Chartered Accountants
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consalidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associate in accordance with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

s Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/ financial
statements of the entities or business activities within the Group, and its associate, to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the financial
statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Chartered Accountants
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

17.We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect(s) total

18.

assets of T 4,454.50 Lacs and net assets of ¥ 2,551.85 lacs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues of ¥
2,532.86 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 393.28 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the
Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, associate, are based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, four subsidiaries, are located outside India whose financial statements
and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally
accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries, located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of such subsidiaries, located outside India, is based on the report
of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company
and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss (including other
comprehensive income) of ¥ 40.16 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
financial statements certified by the management.

Chartered Accountants
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

19. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred to in paragraph 17, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we
report that the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that three
subsidiary companies whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or
provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 187(16)
of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiary companies. Further, as stated in paragraph 18,
financial statements of one associate company, covered under the Act are unaudited and have been
furnished to us by the management, and as certified by the management, such associate company
have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such associate company.

20. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued till date by the respective other auditors as mentioned in
paragraph 17 above, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 and covered under the Act we report that following are the adverse remarks reported
by the other auditors in the Order reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 for which such Order reports have been issued till date
and made available to us:

S Name CIN Holding Company / | Clause number
No subsidiary I | of the CARO
Associate / Joint | report which is
Venture adverse
1 ICE Gate | U80300GJ2015PTC084170 | Subsidiary Company | Clause xi(a)
Educational
Institutional
Private Limited

21. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, and associate incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

¢) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant

books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;
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d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company,

g
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and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies, covered under the Act, , none
of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies, are disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate company covered under the Act,
and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure II'
wherein we have expressed an unmaodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information
of the subsidiaries and associate incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act;

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate as detailed in Note 49(B) to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company did not have any
long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023,

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate
company companies covered under the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2023;

iv.  a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and
associate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on the date of this
audit report other than as disclosed in note 64(v) to the consolidated financial statements,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its
subsidiaries companies and its associate company companies to or in any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies, its associate
companies (‘the Uitimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and
associate company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries,
assaciate respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on the date of this
audit report other than as disclosed in the note 64(vi) to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary companies, or its associate company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
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including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies and
its associate company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of
the subsidiaries and associate, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or
the other auditors to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a)
and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

iv.  The Holding Company, its subsidiaries companies and associate company have not declared
or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

v.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which
use accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1
April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

m@

Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 23099514BGSCMY9798

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 May 2023
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Annexure |

List of entities included in the Statement
Holding Company
1. CL Educate Limited

Subsidiaries

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
Career Launcher Private Limited

Ice Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Limited

Kestone CL US Limited (step down subsidiary)

CL Educate (Africa) Limited (step down subsidiary)
PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia (step down subsidiary)

NOO»GLN =~

Associate

1. Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group’) and its associate as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies and associate company, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that
date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its
associate company, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its associate company
as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to cansolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies and its associate
company, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL.

Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates
to two subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of ¥ 368.52 lacs and net assets of % (15.99) lacs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues
of ¥ 122.78 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ (2.11) lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies have been audited by other

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements for
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in
so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such
companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates
one associate company, which is a company covered under the Act, in respect of which, the Group’s
share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 40.16 Lacs for the year ended 31 March
2023 has been considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of such associate company, which is a company covered under the
Act, is unaudited and our opinion under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates
to the aforesaid associate, which is company covered under the Act, is solely based on the
corresponding internal financial controls with reference to financial statement report certified by the
management of such company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, this financial statement is not material to the Group. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements reports certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

o \.4:»&
N j/_
Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 23089514BGSCMY9798

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 May 2023

Chartered Accountants



CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment property

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Intangibles under development

Investment in associates accounted using equity method

Financial assets

(i) Investments

(i) Other financial assets
Non-current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Curtent assets
Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Baok balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets
Disposal group - Assets held for sale
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Equity atttibutable to equity holders of parent
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Notes

=R B

61
10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
542.05 507.57
524.80 424.70
282.66 288.41
715.43 1,008.89
4,640.33 3,491.98
548.11 387.51
707.42 747.59
60.00 628.73
4,609.88 439.73
1,981.75 1,503.83
1,871.00 1,191.10
25.50 118.62
16,508.93 10,738.66
1,215.88 1,417.19
. 3,986.50
6,963.49 4,994.57
2,500.84 1,519.03
3,865.78 584.35
94.77 1,301.08
1,464.08 2,075.56
3,345.68 2,901.26
19,450.52 18,779.54
1,323.40 5,259.86
37,282.85 34,778.06
2,753.42 1,416.57
24,723.69 24,747.68
27,477.11 26,164.25
1.27 (0.76)
27,478.38 26,163.49
(Continued to next page)



CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless othenvise stated)

(Continued from previous page)

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
() Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities

Other cusrent liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 72 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm r:gistra ifin No. 001076N/N500013

[\\ Qr<

Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.:099514 AWy N\
748 o)
( |
b

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: May 10, 2023

Notes

25
26
27
28

29
31
32
33

34
35

1

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
69.52 292.39
336.24 352.41
563.22 496.71
187.75 197.41
1,156.73 1,338.92
975.45 1,404.94
285.07 163.12
155.71 66.50
3,883.89 2,778.55
912.04 712.67
2,316.16 2,069.98
70.16 62.38
49.26 17.51
8,647.74 7,275.65
37,282.85 34,778.06

=

Nikhil Mahajgn
Executive Director and

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CL Educate Limited

w;wz}f

7
e~
Gautam Puri

Vice-Chairman and

Group CEO Enterprise B Managing Director
3: 00033548

DIN: 0(133404

Rachna Sharma
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No.: A17780
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023

Atjun Wadhwa
Chief Financial Officer



CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Income
Revenue from operations

Other income
Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Service delivery expenses

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Other expenses
"Total expenses

Profit/ (loss) befote share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees and
tax

Exceptional items

Share of loss of equity accounted investecs
Profit/(loss) before tax (from continuing operations)

Tax expense :
- Current tax

- Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Profit/ (loss) for the year (from continuing operations)
(Loss)/profit for the year (discountinued operations)
Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comptehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income-tax relating to these items
Foreign Curtency Translation Reserve

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year (comptising loss for the year and other
comprehensive loss for the yeat)

Notes

37

38
39

41
42
43

45

47

57

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
29,131.39 20,917.05
640.07 870.29
29,771.46 21,787.34
753.10 47744
35.49 24.11
234.47 (60.64)
4,655.97 3,720.73
160.40 352.25
1,116.53 806.99
15,819.20 10,857.32
2,103.54 1,303.29
2,961.84 2,545.49
27,840.52 20,026.98
1,930.94 1,760.36
(15.65) ]
1,915.29 1,760.36
(40.16) (37.59)
1,875.13 172277
301.81 291.08
(681.08) 51.81
(379.27) 342.90
2,254.40 1,379.87
(1.01) (0.81)
2,253.39 1,379.06
4.34 32.60
(1.19) 8.53)
199.02 54.80
202.16 78.88
2,455.55 1,457.94
(Continned to next page)



CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(A amounts are in Rupees lacs, sanless otherwise stated)

(Continsied from previous page)

Profit/ (loss) attributable from continuing operations to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/ profit attributable from discontinuing operations to:
Ownets of the company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/ (loss ) for the year
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
Basic
Diluted

Summary of significant accountng policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 72 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration ﬁ: 001076N/N500013
N A}

Neeraj Goel
Partner
Membership No.:099514 A0 ~.

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: May 10, 2023

ICSI M. No.: A17780
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023 \

RN

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,252.37 1,393.13
2.03 (13.26)
2,254.40 1,379.87
(1.01) (0.81)
(1.01) (0.81)
202.16 78.88
202.16 78.88
2,453.52 1,471.20
2.03 (13.26)
2,455.55 1,457.94
48
408 247
4.08 2.47
1
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CL Educate Limited
! 1
Nl
W
Nikhil Mahajan Gautam Puri
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman and
Group CEO Enterprise Business Managing Ditrector
DIN: 00033404 DIN: 00033548
Rachna Sharma Arjun Wadhwa
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulats Year ended Year ended
Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. | Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit /(loss) before tax from:
Continuing operation 1,875.13 1,722.77
Discontinued operation (1.01) (0.81)
Profit before tax 1,874.12 1,721.96
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,116.53 806.99
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (2,439.80) (164.34)
Loans and advances written off 1,214.60 -
Loss on sale of investments 568.69 -
Property, plant and equipment discraded 14.99 -
Receivable written off 361.18 -
Impairment of goodwill 296.00 -
Provision for slow moving inventory/ wtitten off 10.00 5.54
Finance costs 160.40 352.25
Share of profits of associates 40.16 37.59
Advances written off 18.65 47.18
Rent income on investment property (18.00) 9.60)
Employee share-based payment expense 76.85 .
Liabilities no longer required written back (90.35) (214.83)
Unwinding of interest on security deposits (16.81) (18.12)
Untealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) (45.04) (18.47)
Gain on of mutual fund 91.30) (133.59)
Interest Income (316.81) (208.88)
Finance income on financial guarantees - (1.85)
Gain on lease modification - (16.52)
Expected credit loss /(gain) /written off 497.51 220.54
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,231.57 2,405.85
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (2,421.39) 50.92
- Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories 191.31 (54.13)
- (Increase)/Decrease in loans (8.29) 10.52
- (Increase)/Decrease in financial assets 415.96 (1,250.42)
- (Increase) in current and non current assets (407.90) 2.12)
- Decrease in other current and non-current liabilities 326.91 568,37
- Increase in trade payables 1,194.54 36491
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 74.29 (42.39)
- Increase in curtent and non current financial liabilities 539.33 627.66
Cash flow generated from operations 3,136.33 2,679.17
Add: Income tax refund/(paid) (net) (704.84) 659.92
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 2,431.49 3,339.09
B. | Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, intangible under (2,828.25) (2,097.03)
development (including capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 6,836.71 1,476.40
Purchase of investment in subsidiaties and associates (2.54) (40.01)
Sale of investments in mutual funds 4,077.80 -
Investments in bank deposits (8,846.14) (300.16)
Maturity of bank deposits 1,394.56 675.50
Interest received 113.18 210.57
Rental income on investment propesty 18.00 9.60
Net cash flow/ (used in) investing activities (B) 763.31 (65.12)
(Continued to next page)
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CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AUl amounts are in Rupees lacs, nnless otherwise stated)

. Year ended Year ended
S March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Continued from previous page)
C. | Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (net) (672.67) (2,592.32)
Loan taken from related party 20.31 -
Buy back of equity shares (960.01) -
Buy back tax paid (202.03) -
Payment of lease liabilities (289.48) (532.45)
Interest paid : (109.12) (355.59)
Net cash (used in) financing actvities (C) (2,212.99) (3,480.36)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 981.81 (206.39)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,519.03 1,725.42
Balance at the end of the yeat 2,500.84 1,519.03
(i) | Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- on current account 2,249.37 1,372.98
Cheques/ drafts on hand N 2.70
Cash on hand 251.47 143.35
2,500.84 1,519.03

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow

Statements” specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.
(iii) The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 to 72.

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 72 form an integral past of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated statement of cashflows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm registration ﬂ 001076N/N500013
-~

CL Educate Limited

Neeraj Goel
Partner P g W Executive Director an
Membership No.:099514 / N N

1674 \‘-. DIN: 00K2404

A Rachna Sharma

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

WL M b
Nikhil Mahajan [l autam Puri

Vice-Chairman and
Group CEO Enterprise Busin Managing Director
DIN: 00033548

S bkl 5=

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: May 10, 2023

Atjun Wadhwa
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ICSI M. No.: A17780

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 10, 2023
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CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatoty information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Corporate Information

(¥

CL Educate Limited (the Holding Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office
situated at Plot No.94, Sector 27A, Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana -121003 and corporate office at A-
45, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044. The Holding Company was
incotporated in India on April 25, 1996 to conduct various educational and consulting programmes. The
Holding Company is providing education and test preparation training programmes which include tuitions
to school students and coaching to aspirants for a variety of entrance examinations both at the school and
graduate / post graduate levels.

‘The Holding Company’s equity shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange (NSE) in India.

The Holding Company along with its subsidiaries and its associate has been collectively hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Group’.

(A) General Information and compliance with IND AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Amended Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year:
Ind AS 103 Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The amendment did not have any
material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 16 Proceeds before intended use

The amendment specify that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its
intended use. The amendment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comptises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the amendment did not have any
material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 109 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The amendment did not have any material impact on
financial statements of the Company.



CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(B). Significant accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation:

These consolidated financial statements (“CFS”) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requirements of Ind AS notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation contained in Schedule ITI (Revised) and
other pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws.

These CFS have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement basis
summarised below. These accounting policies have been used consistently throughout all periods presented

in these consolidated financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The CFS have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measured at fair value:

Derivative financial instruments;

ol

1. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

fid. Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

iv Share based payments.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

1. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

il Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

i, It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iif. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The CFS of the Group have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also its functional currency
and all amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
neatest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.



CL Educate Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatoty information on the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(ii) Amended standards adopted by the Group

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and
Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative neatly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

e A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of
interest

o Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued

o Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

B. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and associate. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the

investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (L. existing tights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

S



CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
b) The rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
c¢) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

d) The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of  the
other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
ie., the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

The following consolidation procedures are adopted:
Subsidiary:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date;

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the patent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill;
and

) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between eatities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,

Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests;

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained,;

Recognises any surplus or deficit in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss;

Reclassifies the parent’s shate of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets ot
liabilities

| \ / Y I'
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Associate:

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet. When a member of the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses from transactions with the associate are recognised in the CFS only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of
the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of
the investment.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the
associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when
thete has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.
The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of proﬁt of an associate’ in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

On acqulsmon of control over prewously owned associates, the Group re-measures its previously held eqmty
interest in the associates at the acquisition date fair value and the difference, if any, between the carrying
amount and the fair value is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill is generally computed as the difference between the sum of consideration transferred (measured at
the fair value) the non-controlling interest (“NCI”) in the acquire and the net of the acquisition date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Significant accounting policies

Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

»
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(i)

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount
that reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those product or services
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of
any taxes/duties and discounts.

The Group earns revenue from Educational and training business and sales of text books.

Revenue ice

Revenue in respect of educational and training programme received from students is recognised in profit
and loss over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the setvices at the
reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum. Fee is recorded at
invoice value, net of discounts and taxes, if any. The revenue from time and matetial contracts is recognised
at the amount to which the Company has right to invoice. The Company recognises the excess payment
received over service provided as contact liabilities.

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the
service period of delivery.

In case of EdTech segment, The company offers to collect payment from its customers either on one time
basis at the beginning of the petformance obligation or on instalment plan basis during the performance
obligation. In case of MarTech segment, the company received certain amount of payment upfront while
the remaining is collected over the completion of performance obligation

Pexf blization:

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue.

Revenue as an agent

The Group derives its revenue from event and managed manpower services. When the Group determines
that the nature of its promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(ie. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross amount of consideration.
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However, where the Group promise, is to arrange, for the customer to provide goods/services as an agent
then revenue is recognised only to extent of commission/markup/charges earned by it. In such cases the
Group does not control the goods and services provided to a customer. The indicators evaluated by the
Group to conclude if it is an agent are the following;

(a) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;
(b) The Group does not have any inventory risk

(c) The Group does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other party’s goods or services and,
therefore, the benefit that the Group can receive from those goods or services is limited;

(d) the Group’s consideration is in the form of a commission / service charge or markup; and

(¢) the Group is not exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable from a customer in exchange for the
other party’s goods or services.

Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of Textbooks is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in
exchange for those goods ie. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits
associated with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact of varable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specified in the
contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

In case of test preparation services, sale of text books is recognised at the time of receipt of payment on
account of education and training program provided by the Group and is recorded net of discounts and
taxes, if any.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance
obligations”) to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group has received or expects
to receive in exchange for these products or setvices (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Group
exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment.exceed the services rendered, a contract
liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the period of delivery.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or setvices to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115.
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(i)

(iv)

Revenue in respect of start-up fees from franchisees is recognised on performing a contractually agreed
assignment over a period of time, whether during a single period or over more than one petiod as per
agreed terms of the franchise agreement.

Contract Balances

T'rade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section ix in Financial instruments.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

r incom

Income from advertising is recognised on stage of completion basis as per the terms of the
agreement.

Rental income from investment property is récognised as part of revenue from operations in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation.

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is tecognised using the effective interest
method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross catrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognised in profit and loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is based on the first in, first out formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an item-by-item basis.

Property, plant and equipment
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Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in artiving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipmént is added to its book value only
if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method, and is recognised in the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule II of the Act.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives (in yeats)

Leasehold land Over lease period

Building 60

Furniture and fixtures 8-10

Plant and machinery 15

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8-10

Computer equipment 3

Computer servers and networks 6

Leasehold improvements ' Lesser of 3 years or period of
lease

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the petiod over which management expects to use these assets.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on- sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is

provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of propetty, plant and equipment as the case may
be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes,
if any, are accounted for prospectively.
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When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is
reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds or
amount of security deposit adjusted and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 60 years from the date of original
purchase on straight line basis in accordance with Schedule II to the Act.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an independent valuer who holds
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the relevant location and
category of the investment property being valued. Investment properties are derecognised eithet when they
have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of
consideration from the derecognition of investment property the Group considers the effects of variable
consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of catrying value of another asset.

During previous year ended Match 31, 2021, the Group has started providing digital delivery of products
and services. Accordingly, useful life of various assets has been reassessed and revised by the management.
The group has accounted this as a change in estimate and impact taken prospectively in accordance with
principles of Ind AS 8"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

Amortisation is calculated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
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The reassessed useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful Life (in
yeatrs)

Software 5

Website 5

Content development 7

Non-compete fees 3 and half

Intellectual property rights 15

CAT online module 1-3

Melting POT 10

IOM 10

Aspiration Al 10

Online Video Content 5

Wain Connect 10

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development
expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be
measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or
sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this putpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ (‘Ind AS 109)), is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is
in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the catrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent petiods.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current
income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
OCI or in equity).

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undetlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted ot
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and ate
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on
circumstances then prevailing.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
Group’s or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-
term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate
cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent
years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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b)

d)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and contractual terms of the
asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

nts at fair val

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where
the cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The Group has not designated any debt instrument in this

category.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVIPL”) is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FV'IPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument which otherwise meets amortized cost
ot FVTOCI criteria, as at FVIPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates 2 measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVIPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument in this category.

Eauitv i

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ applies are Ind AS classified as at FVTPL. Equity
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

De-recoonition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the asset in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred.

Impairment of linancial assets

The Group measures the Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL”) associated with its assets based on historical
trends, industry practices and the general business environment in which it operates. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. ECL
impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

Financial liabilities
Initial recopnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

2) Financial libiities at FVTPI

Financial liabilities at FVIPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses ate recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for those attributable to changes in own credit risk, which are recognised in OCI. These
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Financial liabiliti . -

After initial recogaition, financial liabilities designated at amortised costs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
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()

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

De-recopnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Ofisetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
Balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Detivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of executing a derivative contract and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such atrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at
inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

a) The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

b) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

¢) The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the
Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
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(i)

an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses (unless such right of use assets fulfills the requirements of Ind AS 40 - Investment
Property and is accounted for as there under), if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. Right-of-use asset are tested for
impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental botrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a) Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

¢) Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, ot is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities as a separate line item in the standalone financial statements of the Group.

The Group has elected not to apply the requitements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Disposal group — Assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Consolidated Balance sheet and
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified as held for sale, the assets ate not subject to depreciation or
amortisation. Any gain or loss arises on remeasurement or sale is included in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the held-for-sale criteria as

specified in standard are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held
for sale.

The Group measures a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale (or ceases to be
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower of:
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2)

b)

(xiii)

its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal group) was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset (or disposal
group) not been classified as held for sale; and

its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

Employee benefits
Contribution to provident and other funds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the. consolidated Balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ratuit

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Group recognises termination benefit as a liability
and an expense when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the
discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measutements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), ate recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:
* 'The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
*  The date that the Group recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:

+  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

* Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be catried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the leave as a cutrent liability in the balance
sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after
the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement
for a period beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.
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Summaty of significant accounting policies and explanatoty information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related setvice.

Share-based payments

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for the grant of equity shares of the Group
to its employees. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquite equity shares of the
Group that vests in a graded manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The Group
uses the grant date fair value to account for its equity settled share based payment plans granted to
employee, with a corresponding increase in equity over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards. Compensation cost is measured using independent valuation by Black-
Scholes model. Compensation cost, if any is amortised over the vesting perio

Foreign exchange transactions and translations

Lnitial recopniti

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting cutrency, by applying the foreign currency
amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are
measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference atising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Group’s
monetary items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in
previous financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets)
are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Foteign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations ate translated into INR the functional cutrency of the
Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the average
rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

(xvii) Provisions
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatoty information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(xviii)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a curtent pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Group’s Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the
segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments
are included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a
whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’ within
the meaning of Ind AS 108.

S



CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xexii)

(xxiii)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that atises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets ate
only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than
conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Service Delivetry Expenses

These expenses ate attributable to the delivery of core services by the company in both its segments. The
expenses are recognized as per the following policy:

a) Expense related to project and franchisee expenses are recognised in line with the revenue recognition
ie. over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting
date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum.

b) Expenses related to faculty, communication, digital learning support and others are recognised as and
when they are incurred.

Classification of refund liabilities:

Group has a policy to sell its sell it books and study material to the end customer with a right of return. The
group has recognised refund liability in respect of customer’s right to return the product in accordance with
Ind AS 115.

The Group has concluded that the arrangement for return is executory as there is no obligation to deliver
cash until the goods are returned. Accordingly, the Company has presented its refund liabilities as ‘other
current liabilities’.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The prepatation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Group has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
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i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Group, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant
judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact
of any legal or economic limits ot uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur.

a) Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

'The Group reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets.

b) Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

¢) Inventories

The Group estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

d) Business combinations

The Group uses valuation techniques when determining the fair values of certain assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination.

¢) Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

.
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In assessing impairment, Group estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation
uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable
discount rate.

f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AUl amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Right-of-use assets

Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of carrying amount Right-of-use assets Total
Gross catrying amount as on April 1, 2021 789.95 789.95
Additions during the year 451.67 451.67
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease (59.13) (59.13)
Reclassification from leasehold land (refer note 3) (182.79) (182.79)
Gross catrying amount as on March 31, 2022 999.70 999.70
Additions during the year 341.53 341.53
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2023 1,341.23 1,341.23
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 442.22 442.22
Depreciation for the year 132.78 132.78
Balance as at March 31, 2022 575.00 575.00
Depreciation for the vear 241.43 241.43
Balance as at March 31, 2023 816.43 816.43
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 424.70 424.70
524.80 524.80

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Investment property

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
Cost or deemed cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 323.54 323.54
Additions during the year - -
Deletions during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 323.54 323.54
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 35.13 29.38
Depreciation for the year 5.75 5.75
Balance at the end of the year 40.88 35.13
Catrying amounts 282.66 288.41
B. Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss for investment property
For profit from investment property refer note 37

Rental income 18.00 9.60

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 18.00 9.60

Depreciation (refer note 43) ' 5.75 5.75

Income from investment propesty 12.25 3.85
C. Measurement of fair value

Investment propesty 787.88 770.00

787.88 770.00

D. Estimation of fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations for each of its investment property by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate
recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

Fair market value is the amount expressed in terms of money that may reasonably be expected to be exchanged between a willing buyer and a
willing seller, with equity or both. The valuation by the valuer assumes that Company shall continue to operate and run the assets to have economic
utility.

Valuation technique:

Under the market comparable method (or matket comparable approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions. The
market comparable approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay more for the property than it
will cost to buy 2 comparable substitute property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would
indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property could be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the
Company is the price per square metre (sqm).

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique
used.

The valuation techniques and the inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Valuation technique Obesrvable inputs
Matket method Guideline rate (Per sq. m.) Similar piece of land rate (Per sq.
m.)

Investment property consists of commercial spaces in Mumbai and Pune. During the year, the Holding Company has assessed that there is no
significant change in fair value of investment property and accordingly Holding Company has considered the fair valuation of investment property
is in accordance with valuation report for the year 2022-23.
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless othenvise stated)

6. Goodwill
Reconciliation of casrying amount
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the end of the year 1,008.89 1,008.89
Acquisitions through business combinations 2.54 -
Impairment charge* (296.00) -
Total 715.43 1,008.89

6.1 Impairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of operating segments as identified in note 58.

For the purpose of impaitment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group's operatng divisions which represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Group’s operating segments. The aggregate cartying amounts of goodwill allocated to
segments are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
EdTech 601.62 895.08
MarTech 113.81 113.81
715.43 1,008.89

6.2 Significant estimate: key assumptions used for value-in-use

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-yeat period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates ate consistent
with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been on historical data from both external and internal sources.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
Sales volume (% annual growth rate) 2.00% - 15.00% 15.00%
Long term growth rate (%) 3.00% - 5.00% 5.00%
Discount rate (%) 14.00%-15.00% 15.00%
Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:
Assumption Approach used to determining values
Sales volume : Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.
Long-term growth rate: This is the weighted avex;age growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The
rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.
Discount rates: Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in which they operate.

The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amouat of the
cash generating unit,

* During the current year, the Holding Company recognised the impairment provision of Rs. 296.00 lacs against the Goodwill based on the valuation report as such
subsidiary, ICE Gate Educational Institute Private limited is unable to generate cash as business has not reached its pre-COVID levels.
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

8. Details of internally generated intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Content Aspitation. Ai GATE Flix Software Total
Cost or deemed cost (Gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2021 995.37 107.38 61.08 49.17 1,212.99
Additions during the year 260.24 276.92 26.90 148.34 712.40
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,255.61 384.30 87.98 197.51 1,925.40
Additions during the year 514.55 207.67 - 217.20 939.41
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,770.16 591.97 87.98 414.71 2,864.82
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 384.48 26.41 12.21 22.15 445,25
Amortisation for the year 25.06 10.82 8.01 27.84 71.73
Balance as at March 31, 2022 409.53 37.23 20.22 49.99 516.98
Amorttisation for the year 74.13 38.49 8.12 20.66 141.40
Balance as at March 31, 2023 483.66 75.71 28.34 70.66 658.38
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 846.08 347.07 67.76 147.52 1,408.42
As at March 31, 2023 1,286.50 516.26 59.63 344.05 2,206.43
9. Intangibles assets under development
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 387.51 359.13
Add: Addition during the year 989.79 873.70
Less: Capitalized during the year (829.19) (819.31)
Less: Expensed off during the year - (26.01)
Closing Balance 548.11 387.51
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule*:
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year - years
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 548.11 - - - 548.11
548.11 - - - 548.11
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Tatal
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
As at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress 176.69 66.23 144.59 - 387.51
176.69 66.23 144.59 - 387.51

*There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compated to its original plan.

(This space has been intentionally left blank,)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi ial S

ts for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All anionnts are in Rupees lucs, unless otherwise stated)
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Non-current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months from reporting date (refer note (i) below)

Security deposits

Note:

i. Includes deposits of Rs. 373.22 lacs (previous year: Rs. 155.75 lacs) pledged with various authorities.

ii. The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 59.

Non-cutrent tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision)

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note 62)

Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

- prepaid rent

- others

Gratuity fund assets

Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials
Finished goods

Less: Provision for slow moving inventory

Note:

i. Includes raw materials lying with third partics March 31, 2023: Rs. 42.31 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 21.31 Jacs).
ii. Inventories are pledged as securitics for borrowings raken from banks (refer note 25 and 29).

iii. All inventories categories represent text hooks.

|
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As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
4,355.39 314.48
254.49 125.25
4,609.88 439.73
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
1,981.75 1,503.83
1,981.75 1,503.83
As at As at
Match 31,2023  March 31, 2022
1,871.00 1,191.10
1,871.00 1,191.10
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
16.00 89.40
9.50 16.96
- 1124
- 1.02
25.50 118.62
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
42.31 21.31
1,183.57 1,407.43
(10.00) (11.55)
1,215.88 1,417.1%9




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amonnits are in Rupees lacs, niless othenwise stated)
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16

Current investments

Quoted measured at fair value thorugh profit and loss, non-trade
Tavestments in mutual funds (refer note below)

Aggregate of quoted i and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Details of investment in liquid mutual fund units
The balances held in liquid mutual fund as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
- 3,986.50
- 3,986.50
- 3,986.50

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Unit Amount Unit Amount
ICICI Prudential Liquid fund DP Growth - - 302,450.94 953.50
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option - - 21,935.48 917.94
UTI Mutual Fund - - 17,226.08 600.85
ABSL Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct - - 283,000.23 971.05
DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - 17,849.66 543.16
Total - - 642,462.39 3,986.50
Note:
i. Thete are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.
Trade receivables
Asat As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Considered good 6,963.49 4,994.57
Credit impaired 271.61 307.20
Less: Allowances for doubtful trade receivables (271.61) (307.20)
6,963.49 4,994.57
OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul Not Due’ Total
iculars ot Due Less than 6 months 12 Years 2-3 Years More Than o
6 months to 1years 3 years
As at March 31, 2023
fodispused Tradé Beceivabics- Coosidesest 425493 1,136.08 14879 418.06 73.69 325.15 6,356.70
L‘lndlisputed. Trade I.Keceivaible's- which have ) ) ) ) 28.40 28.40
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 21.03 248 19.21 25.59 12,52 162.37 243.21
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered good 299 0.22 - - 597.71 5.87 606.79
Disputed Trade Receivables- B A ) ) . A R
Which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables- ) ) 3 ) i }
credit impaired
Total 4,278.94 1,138.78 168.01 443.65 683.92 521.80 7,235.10

(T'his space bas been intontionally left blank)
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Notes to the C
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for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

17

19

Pacticulats Not Due Ees then 6 months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 2-3 Years b
6 months to 1ycars
As at March 31, 2022 '
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered 1,361.56 1,711.81 263.67 368.28 124.28 319.36 4,148.96
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which have N ) ) ) ) R
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired - 78.12 10.85 35.73 50.05 132.45 307.20
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered good . 17.14 327 634.04 54.93 136.23 845.61
Disputed Trade Receivables- } A ) ) i A R
Which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables- . a R B ) R
credit impaired
Total 1,361.56 1,807.07 277.79 1,038.05 229.26 538.04 5,301.77
Notes:
(i) The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 59.
(ii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally received in normal operating cycle.
(iii) Trade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks (refer note 25 and 29).
(iv) Refer note 52 for trade receivables from related parties.
Cash and cash equivalents
As at Asat
March 31,2023  Masch 31, 2022
Balances with banks
on current account 2,249.37 1,372.98
Cheques/ drafts on hand - 2.70
Cash on hand 251.47 143.35
2,500.84 1,519.03
Note:
(i) The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks are disclosed in note 59.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unpaid dividend account- bank balance 2.56 2.56
Deposits with original maturity for more than three months but remanining maturity of less than twelve moaths {refer note (i) below) 3,863.23 581.79
3,865.78 584.35
Notes :
(i) Includes deposits of Rs. 6.43 Lacs (previous year: Rs. 303.71 lacs) pledged with various authorities.
(ii) The Group’s exposure to liquidity risks are disclosed in note 59.
Loans - Current
Asat As at
March 31,2023  Marsch 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 94.77 49.49
Loans to others* - 1,251.60
94.77 1,301.08

Note:
(i) The Group’s exposure to credit a0d currency risks are disclosed in note 59.

*During the current financial year, the Holding Company has sold its property situated at Greator NOIDA. The Holding Company has recognised a gain on sale of asset of Rs. 2,396.66
Jacs and has written off a loan of Rs. 1,214.60 lacs related to same project which was extended to Career Launcher Education Foundation (CLEF) for development of premises for higher
education purposes. The project was later discontinued by the Holding Company. The pertaining transactions form a part of the exceptional items in the Statement of Profit and Loss of

the Company (refer note 47).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, usless otherwise stated)

20 Other current financial assets

for the year ended March 31, 2023

U d, idered good d otherwise
As at Asat
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Contract asscts 439.97 837.95
Iaterest accrued on fixed deposits 208.96 5.33
Receivable on account of sale of business (refer note 47 and 66) - 400.00
Security deposits 116.76 248.21
Other receivables (refer footnote i) 698.39 584.07
1,464.08 2,075.56
Note:
i. Includes receivables from business partners.
ii. The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 59.
21 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Prepaid expenses 1,691.40 1,888.14
Advances to suppliers 952.18 556.89
Advances to employces 95.22 89.13
Advances to related parties 61.31 61.24
Right to return asset 68.70 79.30
Balance with statutory authorities 476.87 226.56
3,345.68 2,901.26
Note:
(i) Refer note 52 for transactions with related party.
22 Disposal group - Assets held for sale
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Disposal group - Assets held for sale (refer note below) 1,323.40 5,091.72
Right of use assets - 182.79
Lease liability - (14.65)
1,323.40 5,259.86

Note :
The assets held for sale consists of following :

(a) During the ycar, the Group has completed the process of sale of the property held at Greater NOIDA (refer note 47). The sale has been approved by the Board Members and Audir

(b) On March 16, 2017, the Group entered into a Business Transfer Agr

Committee in its meeting held on May 19, 2022. The management has disclosed such Assets as "Disposal Group - Assets held for sale” in accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-Current
Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.

In the previous year, the Group has classified lease hold land already classified as Right of use assets amounting to Rs. 168.14 lacs (Net of lease liability) and Building amouating to Rs.
2,103.19 lacs located at Greator NOIDA assets held for sale.

with [-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer) to sell its Infrastructure Services business (the “Assets”) on
the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy to discontinue its K-12 business. As on date, transaction is cancelled as I-Take Care
Private Limited hasn't been able to arrange the requisite funds to closc the sale, accordingly, advance received has been refunded. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions with
other parties to locate an alternate buyer to give effect to the disposal of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and circumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the
Management remains committed to its plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale" in accordance with Ind AS-105
"Non-Cutreat Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

(Tlis space has been intentionally Jeft blank)



CL Educate Limited
Notes to the C lid
(Al amosants are in Rupees lucs, unless aotherwise stated)

4 Fi ial S
3

for the year ended March 31, 2023

23 Share capital

Authorised
8,00,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 5,45,60,000) equity shares of Rs. 5 each (refer note 70)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
5,50,68,312 (March 31, 2022: 2,83,31,356) equity shares of Rs. 5 cach, fully paid up

a. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Voting
Each holder of equity share is entited to one vote per share held.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
4,000.00 2,728.00
2,753.42 1,416.57
275342 — AT,

The Holding Company declares and pays dividend io Indian rupees. The dividead proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual Geoeral Mecting

except i the case where intcrim dividend is distributed.

Liquidation
To the event of liquidation of the Holding Compaay, the holders of equity shates shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining asscts of the Holding Cory

, after distril of all prefcrential

amounts, if any. Such distrit will be in proportion to the ber of equity shares held by the shareholders.
b. Reconciliation of of shates ding at the beginning and end of the year :
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the begianing of the year 28,331,356 1,416.57 14,165,678 1,416.57
Addition due to spilit of shares (rcfer note 68) - E 14,165,678 -
Share extinguished on buy back (refer notc 69) (797,200) (39.86) - -
Tssuc of Bonus shares (refer note 70) 27,534,156 1,376.71 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 55,068,312 2,753.42 28,331,356 1,416.57
¢. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shates in the Holding Company:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 2022
No. of shates P 21 No. of shares Percentage
Mr. Satya Narayanaa R 9,954,832 18.08% 4962,219 17.51%
Mt. Gautum Puri 9,428,520 17.12% 4,714,260 16.64%
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 5,021,840 9.12% 2,510,920 8.86%
Flowering Tree lovestment Management Pre. Ltd. (along with its 4,430,288 8.05% 2,465,144 8.70%
Persons Acting in Concern i.c. Arjuna Fund Pte. Lid and Ashoka
Pte. Ltd.)
GPE (India) Limited 3,785,892 6.87% 1,892,946 6.68%
32,621,372 59.24% 16,545,489 58.39%
d. Details of shares held by p in the Company:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
% of total % change during % of total % change during
No. of shates . the year No. of shares the year
Name of Promoter
Mr, Satya Narayacan R 9,954,832 18.08% 100.61% 4,962,219 17.51% 102.06%
Mr. Gautam Puri 9,428,520 17.12% 100.00% 4,714,260 16.64% 100.00%
Mr. R Shivakumar 1,428,724 2.5%% 100.00% 714,362 2.52% 100.00%
M. R Srecnivasan 1,414,792 257% 100.00% 707,396 2.50% 100.00%
Mr. Sujit Bhattacharyya 812,248 1.47% 100.00% 406,124 1.43% 100.00%
Mt. Nikhil Mahajan 131,468 0.24% 100.00% 65,734 0.23% 100.30%
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 5,021,840 9.12% 100.00% 2,510,920 8.86% 100.00%
28,192,424 51.19% 14,081,015 49.70%
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Fi ial §
(ANl amosts are in Rupees lacs, nless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

e. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash duting the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

i. The Holding Company has issued equity shares Nil (previous year: 1,41,65,678) as fully paid without pay being d in cash during the financial years 2017-18 to 2021-22 (previous year: 2016-
17 to 2020-21).

il.The Holding Ccmpan)' has Lssucd equity shares aggregating Nil (March 31,2022: 45,931) of Rs.10 cach fully pald up during the financial years 2017-18 to 2021-22 (previous ycar: 2016-17 to 2020-21),
on ise of op granted under the cmployee stock option plans wherein part consideration was recei d in form of employee services.

iii. 2,75,34,156 (pmous year: Nil) equity shares has been issued by way of bonus shares during the financial years 2017-18 to 2021-22 (previous year: 2016-17 to 2020-21).

£. 7,97,200 equity shares have been bought back by the Holdiag Company during the period of five years i liately preceding the reporting date.
g- For Details for share reserved for issuc under the employee stock option of the Holding Company (rcfer to note 56).
24 Other equity As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

24.1 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (3,032.18) (4,435.31)
Add: Profit for the ycar 2,253.39 1,379.06
Add: Other comprchensive income (net of tax)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 314 24,07
Less: Buy-back tax paid (202.03) -
Less: Opeaing adjustment in forcign subsidiasy# (35.16) -
Balance at the end of the year (1,012.84) (3,032.18)
24.2 Securities premium
Balance at the begioning of the year 29,858.85 29,858.85
Less: Utilised for buy-back (960.01) -
Less: Issue of bonus share (1,376.71) -
Balance at the end of the year 27,522.13 29,858.85
24.3 Amalgamation Adjustment reserve
Balance at the beginning/end of the year (2,264.54) (2,264.54)
24.4 General rescrves
Balance at the beginning/end of the yeac 36.95 36.95
24,5 St . m
Gross employee stock compensation for options graated ia eardier years - -
Add: Gross compensation for options for the year 76.85 -
Balance at the end of the year 76.85 -
24.6 Eaui { 1 fi ial i
Balance at the end of the year 4.85 4.85
24.7 Deemed equity
Balance at the beginoing of the year 60.98 53.06
Add: Addition during the year 17.52 7.92
Balance at the end of the year 78.50 60.98
24.8 Capital rescrves
Balance at the end of the year 0.20 0.20
o4 hensive i
Foreign curtency translation reserve
Balance at the begioning of the year 82.56 27.75
Add: Exchange difference 199.02 54.81
Balance at the end of the year 281.58 82.56
‘Total equity attributable to owners 24,723.69 24,747.68
Non-controlling interest resesve
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.76) 12.50
Add: Addition duting the year 203 (13.26)
Balance at the end of the year 1.27 (0.76)
Total reserves and surplus 24,724.96 24,746.92
Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings
Created from profit/loss of the Company, as adjusted for distril to owners and transfer to other reserve.
P NN 7
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(AL amonnis are in Rupees lucs, anless othermis stated)

(i)

(i)

@)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(v

Natuse and purpose of (continued from previous page)

\

Securitics premium

Securities premium has heen created upon issue of sharcs at premium. The rescrve shall be utilised in d with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Amalgmation Adjustment Reserve

Amalgamation adjustment deficit account is a reserve on of adj of net asset ferred to amalg; d company, as negative carrying value of net assets ferred, thereft

p d as amalgamation adj deficit

General reserve

The Company appropriates a portion to general reserves out of the profits cither as per the requi of the Comp Act 2013 (Act) or voluntarily to meet future contingencics. The said reserve

Act, 2013.

'

is available for payment of dividend to the shareholders as per the provisions of the Ce

Share option outstanding account
The Company has an equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain caregories of employees of the Company. Refer to Note 56 for further details on these plans.

Deemed equity
Deemed equity arising out of financial guarantee received from its Promoters.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was g d on of acquisition of erstwhile Paragon classes in the FY 2001-02.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The Group appropriates a portion to general reserves out of the profits cither as per the requi of the Companics Act 2013 (Act’) or voluntarily to meet fature contingencics. The said reserve is
available for paymeant of dividend to the sharcholders as per the provisions of the Act.

In "Ketonte CL Asia Hub Pte. Ltd", wholly owned subsidiary, restatemeat is carried out by the e duetoi ial error which has in in s
Non-current borrowings
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured loan
From banks

Vehicle loans (refer note i) 96.27 30.64

Term loans (refer notc ii) 56.51 44544
From financial institutions

Term loans _(xefcr note iif) - 96.49
Total non-current borrowings 152.78 §72.57
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings (included in note 29) 82.44 276.47
Less: Interest accrucd but not due on borrowings (included in note 29) 0.82 3an
N b ings (as per bal: sheet)

X N

The Group's exposure to cursency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 59
Vehicle loans from bank
Vehicle loans from bank are d against hypothecation of d vehicles. The vehicle loans from bank carry interest rate in the range of 7.90% to 9.18 % per annum (31 March, 2022:825% to
9.18 % per ). The weighted averag ining teoure for these loans is 2.92 years (31 March, 2022 : 2.9 years); with 2 total equal monthly installment of Rs. 3.11 lacs per month (31 March, 2022 :

Rs. 1.85 lacs per month).

(This space has been intentisnally left blank)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al arrounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

'ment of last installments was done on April 1, 2022.

25 Non-current borrowings (continued from previous page)
ii., Secured Tetm loans from bank
b) HDFC Bank
The Holding Company had taken a term loan from HDFC Bank under Emergency Credit line Guaranteed Scheme (ECGLS). Year end balance of the term loan is Rs.
56.51 lacs (Previous year: Rs. 443.02 lacs).
Interest rate:
(@) These loans carry interest at 8.80% per aonum.
Repayment schedule:
(i) The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments after principle moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments will commence from December 7, 2021
and the last installment will be due on November 7, 2024.
iii. Secured Term loans from financial institution
Duting the previous year, the Group Company has completely repaid its term loan taken from Tata Capital. Year end balance of the term loan is Rs. Nil (previous
yeaar : Rs. 95.22 lacs).
Interest rate:
(i) These loans catry interest at 12% per anoum.
Repayment schedule:
(i) 'The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments after principle mosatorium of 12 month. The repay
Collateral security
a. Lien on fixed deposits amouating Rs. Nil ( March 31, 2022: Rs 75.00 lakhs).
iv. The term loans have been used for the specific purpose for which they are taken as at the year end.
26 Non-current lease liabilities
Teasc liablities (refer note 50)
Less: reclassed to assets held for sale
27 Non-current provisions
Ptovision for employee benefits (refer note 51)
Gratuity
Compensated absences
28 Other non-current liabilities

Contract liabilities

(Tis space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
336.24 367.06
- (14.65)
336.24 352.41
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
331.21 290.95
232.02 205.76
563.22 496.71
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
187.75 197.41
187.75 197.41
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29

Current borrowings
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured
- From banks

- Cash credit (refer note i below) 851.70 1,106.50
Unsecured
- from related parties 20.92 0.61
- from others (zefer note ii below) 19.57 18.09
Current maturities of non-current term loan from banks 56.51 166.67
Cutrent maturities of non-carrent term loan from others - 95.22
Current maturities of non-cutrent vehicle loan 25.93 14.58
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.82 3.27

975.45 1,404.94

The Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 59.

Notes:
(i) Details of these loans are as follows:

Cash credit represents overdrafts from HDFC Bank Limited and IndusInd Baok Limited which ate repayable on demand. Cash credit facility from ICICI Bank

Limited was closed in June 2022.

The Holding Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amounting Rs. 750.00 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3,000.00 lacs) with HDFC Bank as an

overdraft facility.

Interest rate
These loans carry interest at bank's base rate + 3.75% (March 31, 2022: bank's base rate + 3.75%) per annum.

Security

These botrowings are secured by way of first and exclusive charge on all present and future cutrent and moveable assets including moveable fixed assets of the

Holding Company.

The Botrowing are further secured by equitable mortgage on following propetties of the Holding Company:
- Office space No. 1 and 2, Third Floor, FC Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune
- Unit No. 207, Second Floor, District Centre, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi

The Borrowing are further secured by personal guarantecs of the promoter and directors (Satyanarayan R., Gautam Puri and Nikhil Mahajan) of the Holding

Company.

(b) Details of loan taken from ICICI Bank Limited

The Group has closed its cash credit facility for LAS account in June'22 with limit amounting Rs. 1,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2022 : Rs.1,000.00 lacs) with ICICI Bank

Limited.

Interest rate

These facility carry interest at bank's base rate + 0.20% (March 31, 2022: bank's base rate + 0.20%) per annum.
Security

The facility was secured by the Mutual Funds taken by the Holding Company.

(<) Details of loan taken from IndusInd Bank Limited

The Holding Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amounting Rs. 1,850.00 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,850.00 lacs) with IndusInd Bank as

an cash credit facility.

Intetest rates

a. The facility availed carries an interest rate of 9% to 10.85% (March 31, 2022 : 11.50%) per annum.

Primary security

First and exclusive charge on entire current assets of the Holding Company both present and future for cash credit from Induslnd Bank.
Collateral security

a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 370.00 lakhs (Mazch 31, 2022: Rs 370.00 lakhs)

b. First and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets of the Holding Company both present and future.

¢. The Borrowing are further secured by personal guarantees of the promoter and directors (Gautam Puri and Nikhil Mahajan) of the Holding Company.

N\
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless orherwise stated)

(ii) Details of unsecured loans

Loan reptesents the unsecured loan taken from Phoenix Academy at an interest rate of 8.25 to 9.30 % per annum by one of the Subsidiary "ICE Gate Educational
Institute Private Limited and from directors at an interest rate of 10.40% per annum by "Career Launcher Private Limited". The said loan is repayable on demand.

(iii) Details of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Holding Company with banks and reasons:
For the year ended 31 March 2023:

Name of bank Quarter ended |Particulars of [Amount as per  |Amount as Amount of |Remarks/reasons (if any)

securities books of reported in the |difference

provided accounts quarterly

statement

HDFC Bank Limited and June 30, 2022 Pari-passu 7,630.51 7,554.00 76.51 |Variance is on the account of Expected
IndusInd Bank Limited charge on Credit Loss provisions coupled with the

current assets differences in the reporting formar to the

respective banks.

HDFC Bank Limited and September 30, |Pari-passu 9,115.07 9,115.00 0.07 |Variance is not material in absolute terms.
Induslnd Bank Limited 2022 charge on

current assets

HDFEC Bank Limited and December 31,  [Pari-passu 7,360.49 7,361.00 (0.51) [Variance is not material in absolute terms.
Induslnd Bank Limited 2022 charge on
current assets
HDFC Baok Limited and Matrch 31, 2023  |Pari-passu 7,711.70 7,711.70 - |Notapplicable.
IndusInd Bank Limited chatge on

current assets

(iv) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars Botrowings Lease liabilities
(Refer (a) below)  (Refer (b) below)

Balance as at April 1, 2021 4,289.68 261.24
Interest expense - 35.35
Loan repayments (net)/lease repayments (including inerest) (2,592.32) (532.45)
Other non cash changes (0.03) 751.39
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,697.33 515.53
Interest expense - 53.73
Loan taken from related party 20.31 -
Loan repayments (net)/lease repayments (including inerest) (672.67) (289.48)
Other non cash changes - 341.53
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,044.97 621.31
®
As at As at
Bortrowings March 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
-Current (refer note 29) 975.45 1,404.94
-Non-Current (refer note 25) 69.52 292.39
1,044.97 1,697.33
®)
As at As at
Lease liabilities March 31, 2023 Matrch 31, 2022
-Current (refer note 30) 285.07 163.12
-Non-Current (refer note 26) A2 336.24 352.41
A ~ ; d/ 621.31 515.53
/ o p—
|
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30

31

Current lease liabilities

Lease liablities (refer note 50)

‘Trade payables

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises (tefer note 54)

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

285.07

16312

285.07

163.12

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

155.71
3,883.89

66.50
2,778.55

4,039.60

2,845.05

Particulars

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment

Less than
1year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2023

‘Total outstanding dues of micro
enterptises and small enterptises

155.71

155.71

Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

1,870.92

1,343.10

402.45

215.50

51.92

3,883.89

Disputed Dues of micro
enterptises and small enterprises

Disputed Dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total

2,026.63

1,343.10

402.45

215.50

51.92

4,039.60

Particulars

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

payment

Less than
1year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

22.18

44.32

66.50

Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micto
enterprises and small enterprises

1,302.48

1,121.10

179.64

98.36

76.97

2,778.55

Disputed Dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed Dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total

1,324.66

1,165.42

179.64

98.36

76.97

2,845.05

Note:

i. Refer note 54 for dues to micro and small enterprises.
ii. The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables are disclosed in note 59.

iii. Other creditors are non interest bearing and are normally settled in normal trade cycle.
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32 Other current financial liabilities

Unpaid dividends (refer note if)
Employee related payables
Payable to selling shareholders
Receipts on behalf of clients

Note:

i. The Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 59.
ii. Unpaid dividend are outstanding from financial year 2018-19.

33 Other current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Refund liablity created against right to return
Others

34 Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 51)
Gratuity
Compensated absences

35 Current tax liabilities

Provision for income-tax (net of advance tax)

(This space has besn intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.56 2.56
851.81 652.16
28.06 28.06
29.61 29.89
912.04 712.67
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,890.68 1,563.44
320.62 341.58
85.87 99.12
18.99 65.84
2,316.16 2,069.98
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
24.86 24.36
45.31 38.02
70.16 62.38
As at As at
March 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
49.26 17.51
49.26 17.51
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36 Revenue from operations

Sale of products:
Text books

Sale of services:
Education and training programmes
Event management services income
Advertising income

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets

Particulars

Education and training programmes
Sale of text books

Event management Services income
Advertising income

Scrap sales

Particulars

Education and training programmes
Sale of text books

Income from advertisement services
Event management Services income
Scrap sales

Changes in contract liablity are as follows:-

Balance at the beginning of the year

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

3,911.70 2,416.45

12,531.04 9,759.68

11,535.79 7,813.38

1,126.10 915.93

26.76 11.61

29,131.39 20,917.05

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade receivables as unearned revenue

balance at the beginning of the year

the year
Reclassification of unearned revenue that is not yet collected in cash
from trade receivables

Balance at the end of the year

Note :

Geographical markets
India Overseas Total
11,972.65 558.39 12,531.04
3,426.27 485.42 3,911.70
9,672.66 1,863.13 11,535.79
1,126.10 - 1,126.10
26.76 - 26.76
26,224.45 2,906.94 29,131.39
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Geographical markets
India Overseas Total
9,066.74 692.95 9,759.69
2,228.06 188.39 2,416.45
915.93 - 915.93
6,356.15 1,457.23 7,813.38
11.61 - 11.61
18,578.48 2,338.57 20,917.05
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,760.85 1,379.29
(1,897.96) (1,097.03)
) 2,262.91 1,579.47
(47.35) (100.88)
2,078.43 1,760.85

1. Opening balance of contract liability is inclusive of uncarned revenue not yet collected cash from trade receivable.
2. Contract liability is associated with educational and training programmes provided to student and institutional customers. However, there is

increased in the contract liablities due to incrased in revenue of the Group.
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Revenue from operations (continued from previous page)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or Year ended Year ended

partially unsatisfied) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 1,890.68 1,563.44

More than one year 187.75 197.41
. Year ended Year ended

Changes in contract assets are as follows:- Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,832.52 5,426.46

Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade receivable as unearned revenue balance (5,832.52) (5,426.46)

at the beginning of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, Excluding amount recognised as revenue during 7,675.07 6,139.73

the year

Credit impaired (271.61) (307.20)

Revenue not recognised that was deducted from trade receivable as unearned revenue

balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year 7,403.46 5,832.52

Revenue as an agent

The Group is involved in marketing and sale scrvices. Such activities interalia involves, working at times, as an agent of the customers for
certain events or for certain activities in an event. For example the customer at times request for collection of registration fees for the event,
which is collected by the Holding Company and paid to the customers. In such cases normally there are, cither the related event revenue or
normal fees/commission. In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the fees/commission in accordance
with para 34 to 38 of Ind AS 115. During the financial year 2022-23 the details of the collectable amount on behalf of the customers are detailed
as under. Such amount is generally paid as and when collected and balance if any is disclosed under “Reccipts on behalf of clients” as other
current financial liability.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount collected/collectable on behalf of various customers - 503.19

Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year - 13.10

The Group is involved in marketing and sale services. Such activities interalia involves, working at times, as agent of the customers for certain
events or for certain activities in an event. For example the customer at times request for payment to various vendors for the services rendered
to them, which is paid by the Holding Company to various vendots and collected from customers. In such cases normally there are, either the
related event revenue or normal fees/commission. In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the
fees/commission in accordance with para 34 to 38 of Ind As 115. During the financial year 2022-23 the details of the amount paid/ payable on
behalf of the customers are detailed as under. Such amount is generally collected from client as and when paid and balance if any is disclosed
under “Trade Receivable” as current financial assets.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount paid/payable on behalf of various customers during the year 48.49 28.02
Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year 3.35 1.42
SN
TN (This space has been intentionallt et blank) )
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37

38

39

Other income

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Security deposits
- Fixed deposits
- Income tax refunds
- Others
Income on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
-Gain on sale of mutual funds
-Gain on fair value change of current investment
Liabilities no longer required written back
Rent income on investment property (refer note 5)
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
Subsidy received from Goverment
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance income on financial guarantees
Gain on modification and termination of leases
Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the year (Refer note i)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Sub-total (A)

Printing cost
Sub-total (B)

Total (A+B)

Notes:
(i) Details of purchases are as follows:

Paper

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Text books

(This space has been intentionallt left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
16.81 18.12
296.02 62.13
16.87 146.75
3.91 -
91.30 -
- 133.59
90.35 214.84
18.00 9.60
51.94 22.94
17.81 -
- 230.31
- 1.85
- 16.52
37.06 13.64
640.07 870.29
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
21.31 12.45
426.32 201.72
(42.31) (21.31)
405.33 192.85
347.77 284.59
347.77 284.59
753.10 477.44
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
426.32 201.72
426.32 201.72
Year ended Year ended
Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
35.49 24.11
35.49 24.11
s e/
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(A amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

40 Changes in inventories of stock in trade

M1

42

43

Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished goods

-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 21)

Total

Inventories at the beginning of the year

-Finished goods

-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 21)

Total

Net decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Note:

Right to return assets indicates the cost comporient of expected returns recognised.

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 51)

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (tefer note 51)
Expenses related to compensated absences

Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 56)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

-on vehicle loans
-on term loans
-on overdrafts

Interest expenses on refund of advance
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 50)

Finance cost on financial guarantees
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (tefer note 7)

Depreciation on investment property (refer note 5)
Depreciation on Right-of-use of assets (refer note 4)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,183.57 1,407.43
68.70 79.30
1,252.27 1,486.73
1,407.43 1,354.10
79.30 71.99
1,486.73 1,426.09
234.47 (60.64)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
4,066.22 3,298.73
186.34 180.74
87.37 97.30
67.89 32.28
76.85 -
171.30 111.68
4,655.97 3,720.73
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7.56 2.79
45,31 118.78
8.81 157.81
- 3.47
1.37 1.54
53.73 35.35
- 7.57
43.62 24.94
160.40 352.25
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
103.22 144.20
766.13 524.26
5.75 5.75
24143 132.78
1,116.53 806.99
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(Al amannts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

44

45

Service delivery expenses

Franchisee expenses

Project expenses

Faculty expenses

Communication expenses

Digital Learning support expenses
Sponsorship fees

Material printing cost

Vocational Business Servicing Costs

Sales and marketing expenses

Advertisement and marketing expenses
Digital marketing cost
Business promotion

Other expenses

Repairs to:

-Buildings

-Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Rent (refer note 50)

Legal and professional chatges (refer note i below)
Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Sales incentive

Sundry balances written off

Equipment hire expenses

Loans and Advances written-off

Bad debts written off

Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for obsolete inventory

Freight and cartage outward

Foteign exchange loss (net)

Commission to non executive directors
Consumption of packing materials

Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 53)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Expenses on transfer of property

Brokerage on transfer of property S

Miscellaneous expenses Ao

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
6,359.65 4,437.98
8,562.35 5,547.60
297.73 206.11
276.68 217.90
190.58 176.13
4.59 35.23
127.62 213.05
. 23.32
15,819.20 10,857.32
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
857.29 270.76
1,015.95 926.31
230.30 106.22
2,103.54 1,303.29
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
79.03 22.81
82.03 62.38
46.54 50.17
101.89 229.66
184.20 227.99
758.96 642.14
210.24 79.05
626.28 540.18
61.75 63.30
18.64 47.08
95.32 109.93
- 0.10
465.80 183.19
317 37.59
10.00 -
44.89 22.11
6.91 447
11.98 10.85
19.06 12.79
49.73 40.39
- 0.22
- 55.00
- 10.75
/2 27 56.88 93.34
‘K 2,961.84 2,545.49
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Notes to the Consolidated Rinancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless othermise stated)

Note:
i) Payment to auditors (excluding GST)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory audit 41.00 42.25
Other services 13.00 12.80
Out of pocket expenses 1.01 1.05
55.01 56.10
47 Exceptional Items
Sale proceeds from properties® 6,836.71 .
Less : written down value (3,936.45) -
Less : Expenses incusred on transfer of properties (442.46) -
Profit on sale of property (a) 2,457.80 -
Loans and advances written off (refer note 19) (1,214.60) -
Loss on sale of investments (refer note 61 D) (568.69) -
Expense on sale of investments (18.00) -
Property, plant and equipment discarded (14.98) -
Receivables written off (trefer note 66) (361.18)
Provision for impairment of investments in subsidiaty (refer note 6) (296.00) -
(15.65) -

*During the year, the Company has completed the process of sale of the property held at Greater NOIDA. The sale has been approved by the
Board Members and Audit Committee in its meeting held on May 19, 2022. In the previous year, the Company has classified lease hold land
amounting to Rs. 168.14 lacs (net of lease liability) and Building amounting to Rs. 2,103.19 lacs located at Greator NOIDA assets held for sale.

Such property has been sold during the year, the expenses incurred in relation to sale of property, other receivables and impairment in the
investments in subsidiary has been set off with profit on sale of property considering the exceptional nature of the items.

48 Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders 4,08 247
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders . -

(b) Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders 4.08 247
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders - -

() Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations _ 2,254.40 1,379.87
From discontinuing operations (1.01) 0.81)
SO0
Pl
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(Al anounts are in Rupees lacs, unless othervise stated)

No of shares No of shares
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share 55,292,782 55,865,512
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Stock Options Plan 48,702 -
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 55,341,484 55,865,512

Note:

Basic and diluted earnings per share of previous year has been changed due to issue of bonus shares in current year.

(This space has been intentionallt left blank}
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A.

if)

i)

iv)

v

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - -
account and not provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (tefer note a) 1,814.68 2,141.30
1,814.68 2,141.30
Note a: Details of claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (refer note (i))
Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 1,077.89 1,077.89
Income-tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years* 671.40 965.96
Other cases Matters in dispute/under appeal # 65.39 97.45
1,814.68 2,141.30

Remarks:

(i) The management is of the opinion that, based on issues decided in the eatlier years and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect to tax mattets, as given above will be in favour of the Group and also will not have material adverse effect to the financial
position of the Group.

% This does not includes the income tax amiounting to Rs. 1,696.20 lacs in respect of AY 2021-22 and AY 2022-23 respectively as such demand is
raised based on the contingent liability disclosed in the financials statement which seems mistake apparent from the records and management is in
process of rectified the same.

# Other cases

Triangle Education, then a franchisee of the Holding Company in Jaipur, had arbitratily terminated the agreement and started a competing
business using the brand of CL Educate Limited. The Holding Company has filed a statement of claim before the sole Arbitrator amounting Rs.
Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs. 190.00 lacs) against triangle education. Triangle Education also filed a counter claim against the Holding Company
amounting Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs. 32.06 lacs). The Sole arbitrator has passed the final order partially in favous of the Holding Company.
Further, the Hon'ble Delhi High Court passed an order thereby restraining the Trainagle Edcuation from using the trade mark LST/Ex-LST in
any form, but Traingle Education violated these orders and hence the Holding Company has filed contempt petition against the respondent
before Delhi High Court and the matter is fixed for argument on May 29, 2023.

The Director of Industries and Commerce cum Chairman MSE- Chandigarh has sent2 notice amounting Rs. 12,31 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs.12.31
lacs including interest of Rs. 3.30 lacs) on behalf of Reivera Fabricators regarding non payment of dues on account of uniforms supplied to Indus
World Schools. The Holding Company has preferred an appeal against the same, the date of hearing is awaited.

Bawadiz kala shikisha samiti, a lessot has filed a case against the Holding Company in Bhopal for recovery of rent /atrears amounting Rs.46.88
lacs (Previous year Rs. 46.88 lacs) for non payment of rent, the Holding Company engaged a local lawyer who will filed necessary application to
transfer the case to New Delhi as the rent agreement has arbitration clause, which states that the matter will be decided in New Delhi. The matter
is fixed for argument on June 20, 2023.

A student, has filled a case against the Holding Company for refund of ‘fees amounting Rs. 6.20 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 6.20 lacs) on the ground
that he paid fees to Brilliant Tutorials considering the fact that the Holding Company has a tie-up with Brilliant Tutorial which was subsequently
called off by the Holding Company. The matter is fixed for final argument on August 9, 2023.

Apart from those disclosed above, the Group has certain ongoing litigations involving customers, vendors and employees. Based on legal advice
of in house legal team, the management believes that no material liability will devolve on the Group in respect of these litigations.

I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupees Jacs, unless otherwise stated)

C.
i)

Other litigations

In the financial year 200910, the Holding Company had given a franchisee to Ms Monica Oli in the name of Comptehensive Education and IT
Training Institute to provide test preparation services in Dubai (UAE). In the financial year 2012-13, the Holding Company had terminated the
franchise agreement on accouat of non-recovery of fees collected by the franchisee from students. At the time of the cancellation of agreement
the total amount of receivables from and payable to Ms Monica Oli were AED 1,019,842 (Rs. 150.88 lacs) and AED 261,318 (Rs. 38.66 lacs)
respectively. The Holding Company had preferred arbitration in the matter and the Hon'ble Arbitrator has passed an award amounting AED
2,063,267 (equivalent to Rs. 351.37 lacs) in favour of the Holding Company including damages. The Holding Company had obtained the
necessaty execution documents from the Delhi High Court and sent these documents through the Indian Embassy for depositing in the Dubai
Courts for execution. The matter has been appealed by Ms Monica Oli in both Dubai and Delhi High Court with next date of hearing scheduled
on July 26, 2023.

Leases

The Group has applicd Tnd AS 116 with the date of initial application of April 1, 2019. As a result, the Group has changed its accouating policy
for lease contracts (Refer note 2(xi)). The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-use assets and related
lease liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low value or having a lease term of less than 12 months.
The Group applied Ind-AS 116, leases using the modified retrospective approach.

Group as "Lessee"
"The Group has significant leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for its various office premises and godowns. These lease arrangements
are for a period between 12 months to 60 months and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases.

Lease liabilities
The movement in lease liabilities are as follows :
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 515.53 261.24
Addition during the year 341.53 451.67
Finance cost accrued during the period 53.73 35.35
Payment of lease liabilities* (289.48) (532.45)
Reclass to Asset held for Sale - (14.64)
Reversal on account of modification/ termination of lease - 314.36
Closing Balance 621.31 515.53
Non-current Lease liabilitics (refet note 26) 336.24 35241
Current Lease liabilities (refer note 30) 285.07 163.12

*Payment of lease liabilities includes payment of ptincipal of lease liabilities amounting of Rs. 235.75 lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 497.10 lacs) and
interest of lease liabilities amounting of Rs. 53.73 lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 35.35 lacs).

(This space has been intentionallt left blank)



CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amonnts are in Rupees lacs, uniless otherwise stated)

ii  The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows :

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2023

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than one year 329.53 44.46 285.07
Later than one year and not later than five years 363.88 27.64 336.24
‘Total 693.41 72.10 621.31
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2022

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Leasc Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than one year 175.88 1276 163.12
Later than one year and not later than five years 38222 29.81 35241
Total 558.10 42.57 515.53

b) For disclosures in respect of Right-of-use assets, refer note 4
c) Short term lease

The company used the following practical expedient when applying Ind AS-116, leases.
- Applied the exemptions not to recogoise right-of-use assets and liabilities for lease with less than 12 months of term lease.
- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate of lease.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expenses relating to short term leases (included in other expense) 184.20 22799

B. Group as alessor
The Group has given its premises on cancellable operating lease to one of its franchisees.
Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year amounting Rs.18.00 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 9.60 Jacs).

(This space has been intentionallt left blank)
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@)

Employee benefits
The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and state
insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employers contribution to provident fund 184.9 178.54
Employers contribution to state insurance 143 220
Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity

The Group operates a post-cmployment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. Plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Grawity Act,
employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employmeat on completion of five years or death while in employement.
"This plan entitles an employce to receive half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. The Group contributes to a trust set
up by the Group which further coatributes to a policy taken from the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present valuc of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognize cach period of service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Group’s
financial statcments as at balance sheet date:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net defined benefit (asset)/liability

Gratuity (partly funded) 356.07 315.31
Total employee benefit liabilities 356.07 315.31
Non-cusrent 331.21 290.95
Current 24.86 24.36

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability .
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefir (asset) liability and its components:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Defined benefit  Fair value of Net defined Defined Fair value of plan Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit benefit assets benefit
(asset)/ liability obligation (asset)/ liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 350.32 (35.01) 315.31 389.61 (23.07) 366.54
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 68.81 - 68.81 58.40 - 58.40
Interest cost (income) 22.37 (3.81) 18.56 25.36 (1.74) 23.62

91.18 (3.81) 87.37 83.76 (1.74) 82.02
Included in OCI
Remeasurements loss (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions (17.30) - (17.30) 9.79) - 9.79)
- demographic adjustment - - - B - -
- experience adjustment 12,59 - 12,59 (36.84) - (36.84)
Return on plan assets 0.34 0.03 0.37 - 15.18 15.18

(4.37) 0.03 (4.34) (46.63) 15.18 (31.45)
Other
Not consoidered in last year
Contributions paid by the employer - (58.96) (58.96) - (79.68) (79.68)
Fund management charges - 0.45 045 - 0.53 0.53
Admin charges - (1.85) (1.85) - - -
Acquisition adjustment Out 22.27 4.07) 18.20 - - -
Benefits paid (57.04) 56.92 0.11) (76.42) 53.78 (22.64)

(34.76) (7.51) (42.27) (76.42) (25.37) (101.79)
Balance at the end of the year 402.36 (46.29) 356.07 350.32 (35.01) 315.31
SN
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(All anronnts are in Rupees Jacs, unless otherwise stated)

)

b)

)
iif)

Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service cost 68.81 58.40
Net interest cost 18.56 23.62
87.37 82.02
Plan assets

The plaa assets of the Group are managed by Lifc Insurance Corporation of India through a trust managed by the Group in terms of an insurance policy taken to
fund obligations of the Group with respect to its gratuity plan. The categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets is based on information provided
by Life Insurance Corporation of India with respect to its investment pattern for group gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several other
companies.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Funds Maoaged by Insurer (investment with insurer) 100.00% 100.00%
Actuarial assumptions
E i ions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the
accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on
long term basis. Valuation aaumptions arc as follows which have been selected by the group.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.36%-7.38% 7.18%-7.22%
Expected rate of future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retirement age (years) 58.00 58.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of TALM (2012-14)
Ages Withdrawal rate (Y6)
External/Internal
Upto 30 years 2.32/1.22-3.00% 2.32/1.22-3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 1.77/0.90-2.00% 1.77/0.90-2.00%
Above 44 years 0.14/0.06-1.00% 0.14/0.06-1.00%

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawls are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payament, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (22.36) 24.46 (22.23) 24.36
Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5% movement) 21.82 (20.54) 22.82 (20.90)

Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which arc dynamic in pature and vaty over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks as follow

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increasc in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.

B) Investment risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.

) Discount rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan’s liability. )

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Duration of defined benefit obligation Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 25.80 24.35
Between 1-2 yeass 39.94 5.63
Between 2-5 years 1791 48.86
QOver 5 years 318.71 271.48
Total 402.36 350.32

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the following year is Rs. 113.74 lacs. (March 31, 2022: Rs. 104.12 Jacs)
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(ANl amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(i)

2)

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Group provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future scrvice periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the selated sexvice and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified s a long-term employee benefit.

The preseat valuc obligation in respect of earned leave is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises cach
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit cndtlement and measures cach unit scparately to build up the final obligations.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the compensated absences and the amounts recognised in the
Group’s financial statements as at balance shect date:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net defined benefit liability
Earned Leave (unfunded) 277.33 243.78
Total employee benefit liabilities 277.33 243.78
Non-current 232.02 205.76
Carrent 45.31 38.02

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at As at
Mazch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation
Net defined bencfit liability at the beginning of the year 24378 233.09
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 3813 35.82
Interest cost (incomc) 18.26 17.47
56.39 53.29
Included in OCI
Remeasurements loss (gain)
— Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions 0.04) 0.19)
- Experience Adjustment 11.54 (20.82)
Return on plan assers - =
' 11.50 (21.01)
Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Acquisition adjustment (4.10) 7.63
Benefits paid (30.24) (29.22)
(34.34) (21.59)
Net defined benefit liability at the end of the year 277.33 243.78
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss As at As at
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service cost 38.13 35.82
Net interest cost 18.26 17.47
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 11.50 (21.01)
67.89 32.28
Actuarial assumptions
Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions arc the discount rate and salary growth ratc. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the
accounting date with & term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase sate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on

long term basis. Valuation aaumptions are as follows which have been sclected by the Group.
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b)

ii)

i)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.36-7.38% 7.18-7.22%
Expected rate of future salary increase 6.00% 6-8%
Demographic assumptions
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retirement age (years) 58.00 58.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for 100% of IALM (2012-14)
disability
Ages Withdrawal rate (%) Withdrawal rate (%a)
Upto 30 years 00-3% 00-3%
From 31 to 44 years 2-2.33% 2-2.33%
Above 44 years 0-1% 0-1%

Expected contributions to post-cmployment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2023 is Rs. 71.55 lacs (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 56.23 lacs).
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the ead of the reporting period is 18.72 years (March 31, 2022: 18.41 years).

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
obligation by the amouats shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawls arc not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payament, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy arc not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 D I Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 9.54) 10.25 9.74) 10.50
Expected rate of future salary increase (0.5% movement) . 10.34 9.69) 10.55 (9.87)

Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dypamic in natuse and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks as follow -

A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.

B) Iavestment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on 2ssets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the Lability.

C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher thaa assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilidies.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan’s liability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year 45.96 38.03
Between 1-2 years 50.48 4.61
Between 2-5 years 13.11 4747
Over 5 years 167.77 153.67
Total 271.32 243.78

\ \
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52  Related parties
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parties where control exists and/or with whom
transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the management are:

A.  Name and description of relationship of the related party

i.  Associate company Three Sixty One Degree Minds Consulting Private Led

ii. Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists Carcer Launcher Employee Group Grawity Trust

iii. Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Key managerial personnel (KMP) Mr. Satya Narayanan R (Chairman and Executive Director)
M. Gautam Pusi (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Nikhil Mahajan (Exccutive Director and Group CEO Enterprise Business)
Ms. Madhumita Ganguli (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mt. Girish Shivani (Non-Executive Independent Director)
M. Sanjay Tapriya (Non-Executive Independent Disector)
Mr. Piyush Sharma (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Imran Jafar (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director)
Mr. Arjun Wadhwa (Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Rachna Sharma (Company Sccretary and Compliance Officer)

Enterprises in which KMP and their Bilakes Consulting Private Limited, India
relatives are able to cxercise significant Career Launcher Foundaion
Relatives of KMP Mr. R Sreenivasan

Mr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran

B. Transactions during the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a  Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
i Reimb t of exp from related parties
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited - 0.18

ii  Amount paid towards CSR expenses
- Career Launcher Foundation 49.73 40.00

iii  Receipt on behalf of other
- Career Launcher Foundation 2.84 4.73

b Key management personnel (KMP) and theit relatives
i Short term employee benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 155.69 84.60
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 155.69 84.60
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 142,61 79.17
- Mr. R Sreenivasan 45.80 24.96
- Mr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran 69.28 24.96
- Mr. Arjun Wadhwa 59.24 55.83
- Mrs. Rachna Sharma 31.49 28.52

ii  Employee stock compensation expense
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 0.76 -
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B. ‘Transactions during the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

iii  Post employment benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 1.06 112
- Mr. Satya Narayaoan R 0.73 0.48
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 0.66 0.40

iv  Other long term benefits

- Mr. Gautam Puri 6.54 -
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 7.05 -
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 5.24 -

v Interest Expenses
- Mr. Gautam Puri 0.23 -
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 0.23 -

vi Loan/ advance taken
- Mr. Gautam Puri 10.00 -
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R. 10.00 -

vii Commission to non-executive Directors

- Mrs. Madhumita Ganguli 2.00 312

- Mr. Girish Shivani 2.90 432

- Mr. Sanjay Tapariya 2.50 3.52

- Mr. Piyush Sharma 0.80 232
C. Related party balances as at the year end: As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a  Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
i Capital advance
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 16.00 16.00

ii Other receivables
- Career Iauncher Foundation 18.41 15.57

iii ~ Other advances
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 61.31 61.24

b  Key management personnel (KMP)
i Short term employee benefits payable:

- M. Gautam Puri 6193 43,06
- M. Satya Narayanan R 6333 4224
- M. Nikhil Mahajan 59.07 39.87

ii  Post employment benefits payable:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 20.00 18.94
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 13.99 13.26
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 13.15 12.49

jii ~ Other long term benefits payable:

- Mr. Gautam Puri 41.25 34.71
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 39.79 32.74
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 41.00 35.75

iv  Cutrent loans taken
- Mr. Gautam Puri 10.00 -
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 10.00 -
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iii)

54

Note:

Apart from above, Directors of the Holding Company i.c Mr. Satya Narayan R, M. Gautam Pusi and Mr. Nikhil Mahajan have given personal guarantees against
loan and overdraft facilitics, the balance amount of loaas guarantced are Rs.851.70 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 523.35 lacs)

During the previous ycar, the Group had incorporated a Section 8 company Career Launcher Foundation which has not been considered for consolidation
purposes in accordance with applicable Ind AS.

During the year, post detailed asscssmeat done by the Holding Company, a charitable trust by the name of Carcer Launcher Education Foundation (“CLEF”) has
ceased to a Related Party from 01-April 2021 post resignation of one of its trustees who was earlicr an employee of CL Educate Limited (* Holding Company”).
Post the resignation of the above-mentioned employee, Holding Company no longer has any influeace on the trust since 2 out of its total 3 trustees are not
associated with the Holding Company. In addition to this, the Holding Company also doesn’t have any control over appointment of current/future trustees.
During the year the Holding Company carried out the following transactions with the trust:

A) Repayment of certain previous loan given & interest thereof: Rs. 48.25 lacs

B) Loan written-off: Rs. 1,214.60 lacs (Refer Note 19)

C) Purchase of Intangible Assets: Rs. 80.00 Jacs

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

Usless otherwise stated, the transactions with related parties are made on terms cquivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and are at market
value.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, the Holding Compaay is required to spend, in
every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance
with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Gross amount required to be spent by the company - -
B. Amount spent duriog the year on:

- Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than (i) above 4973 40.39
C. The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the - -
amount required to be spent by the Company during the

yeas

D. The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts; - -
E. The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note; - -
F. The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company. - -
G. The Compaay has excess amouat of Rs. Nil (March 31, - -
2022: Rs. 78.08 lacs) to be carried forward and sct off

against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of

section 135 up to immediate succeeding three financial years.

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a 49.73 40.00
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosuses.

In terms of the clause 22 of chapter V micro, small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006 (MSMED act 2006), the disclosure of payments duc to any
supplier are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 Marcch 31, 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting period included in

Principal amount duc to any supplier 155.71 66.50
Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along - -
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach

accounting period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -

been paid but beyond the appointment day during the period) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

“The amount of interest accrued and remaining uapaid at the end of each accounting period - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such | - -
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of 5.

disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006. \ /f/’
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55 The Group has in the past undertaken various Central and State Government / Agencics, projects in the education / skill development sector. Most of these
projects are complete, however the dues from the concerned department / agency has not been realized mainly on account of delays and long process. The details
of such vocational trade receivables which are outstanding for a considerable period of time are given below. In the opinion of the management it has made the
necessary provision, wherever required and such balances are fully recoverable. The details of amount recoverable are as under:

Vocational trade receivables Total A t A to/s. | Expected Credit | Amount of write
for more than 3 Loss (ECL) off
years (out of Provision on
total amount) outstanding
amount
As at March 31, 2023 215.14 215.14 - 142.45
As at March 31, 2022 357.59 357.59 27.89 -

56  Share based payments
Description of share-based payment arrangements

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Members of the Company at their respective meetings held on March 6, 2008 and Masch 31,
2008, the Company introduced its ESOP Plan cutrently in force, with the name “Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008” (hereinafter the “Plan” or
“Scheme”), which provided for the grant of upto 250,000 options (Convertible into 2,50,000 equity shares of face valuc of Rs. 10 each) to employees of the
Company and its subsidiarics.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by Board of Directors and Members of the Holding Company at their respective meetings held on August 11, 2014 and
Scptember 5, 2014, the Company made amendments to the Plan, and changed its name to "Amended Carcer Launches Employee Stock Options Plan 2008”.
Fusther amendments were made to the Plan vide resolutions passed by the Board of Disectors and Members of the Holding Company at their respective meetings
held on January 29, 2016 and March 22, 2016, whereby the Company re-named the Plao as “Amended and Restated Career Launcher Employee Stock Options
Plan 2014”. The Holding Company renews and extends the term of the Plan as the need arises, from time to time. Accordingly, the Plan was rencwed and
extended for a period of 4 years i.c., from September 5, 2021 to Scptember 4, 2025 by the Members of the Company at the 25th Annual Geaceral Meeting held on
September 07, 2021.

As on March 31, 2022, 3,35,050 number of options (1,67,525 number of options before the Sub-Division of each Equity Share of Rs. 10/- into 2 Equity Shares of
Rs. 5/- cach, w.e.f. October 1, 2021) remained to be granted under the Plan (March 31, 2021: 167,525 number of options of Rs. 10 each).

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and sharcholders at thei respective meetings held on May 19, 2022, and September 15, 2022, have approved an
increase in the ESOP Pool uader the existing Plan by an additional 5,00,000 options {convertible into 5,00,000 (Five Lakh) equity shares of face value of Rs.5/-
each, fully paid-up}.

Further pursuant to a Bonus Issue of Equity Shares of the Holding Company in the ratio of L:1, via approval of the sharcholders of the Holding Company by way
of Postal Ballot dated December 04, 2022, the outstanding number of options under the Plan doubled from 8,350,50 to 16,70,100.

As on March 31, 2023, 16,70,100 number of options (March 31, 2022: 3,35,050 number of options) were outstanding under the Plan.

Pursuaat to the resolutions passed by the NRC Committee and the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company, at their respective meetings held on February
13, 2021, had approved the ESOP Plan of Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Ltd. (‘Kestone Singapore’), a step down 100% subsidiary of the Group Cormapany, under
which, options could be granted to advisors, directors, employecs (full time or otherwise), consultants or independent contractors of Subsidiary Company and/or
its Holding/Subsidiary Companies.

Note: Under the Plan, the options that are forfeited, lapsed or terminated, are pooled back and can be granted again. It is hereby confirmed that at no point of
time did the total number of options granted under the Plan excecded 16,70,100.

During the year, the Holding Compnay has gxa.ntéd 1,29,828 options (Previous year: Nil). The Nomination and Remuneration Committce as well as Board of
Directors approved the allocation of Options under the Plan to identificd employees of the Holding Company and its Subsidiarics, and approved the Terms of
Grant, Vesting and Exercise of the Options at their respective Meetings held on February 02, 2022.

a.  Details of options outstanding at the year end with the range of exercise price and weighted average remaining contractual life:

Employees entitled No. of options Vesting conditions Weighted Contractual life of options (in year)
Holding Company
March 31, 2023 104,546 3 years' service from the grant date 3
March 31, 2022 NIL 3 years' service from the grant date NA
Subsidiary Company
March 31, 2023 1,760,000 Unconditional 2
March 31, 2022 NIL -
P
AN e
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b.

Reconciliation of outstanding share options:

ial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The number and weighetd-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans are as follows:

P to ¢ than directors of the Holdin, an

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Exercised during the year

Forfeited during the year

Expired during the year®

Outstanding at the end of the year

Vested during the year
Exercisable during the year

15 he Subsidi mpal

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted duriog the year

Exercised during the year

Forfeited during the year

Expired during the year

OQutstanding at the end of the year

Vested during the year
Exercisable during the year

Fair value of options granted:

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model. Expected volatility has

of the Group.

Particulars

Holding Company

Dividend yield

Expected volatility (Yo)*

Risk-free interest rate (Vo)

Weighted average share price (in Rs.)

Exercise price (i Rs.)

Carrying amount of liability-included in employee benefit obligations

Subsidiacy Company

Dividend yield

Expected volatility (o)*

Risk-free interest rate (%o)

Weighted average share price (in Rs.)

Exercise price (in Rs.)

Carrying amouat of liability-included in employee benefit obligations

~ Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average  Number of options
exercise price per options exercise price per

share option share option
14.57 129,828 -
14.57 25,282 - -
14.57 104,546 - -
Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Weighted Average ~ Numberof ~— Weighted Average Number of options
exercise price per options exercise price per
share option share option
0.85 1,942,500 - -
0.85 85,000 - -
0.85 97,500 -
0.85 1,760,000 - -
0.85 1,942,500 - R
0.85 1,845,000 - -

been determined using historical fluctuation in share issue prices

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

56.64%
6.60%
62.28
14.00
35.00

50.00%
2.47%-2.61%
4.24

0.85

41.85

* The expected volatlity is detcrmined on the historical closing share prices of the Holding and Subsidiary Company for 2 period of the past year from the grant

date.

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

s arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense was Rs. 76.85 lacs (Previous year : Rs. Nil).
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57 Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Particular As at As at

¢ Match 31, 2023 Match 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment (efer note A and B below) 1,323.40 5,259.86
Total Assets 1,323.40 5,259.86
Notes:

A On March 16, 2017, the Group entered into 2 Business Transfer Agreement with [-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer’) to sell its Infrastructute Services
business (the “Assets”) on the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy to discontinue its K-12
business. As on date, transaction is cancelled as I-Take Care Private Limited hasn't been able to arrange the requisite funds to close the sale, accordingly,
advance received has been refunded. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions with other parties to locate an alternate buyer to give effect to the
disposal of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and circumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the Management remains committed to
its plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues t© disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale" in accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-

Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of the business subject to slump sale:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue - -
Other income - -
Finance cost - -
Other expenses 1.01 0.81
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations before tax (1.01) (0.81)
Income-tax expenses - -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations after tax (1.01) (0.81)

As at March 31, 2023, the cartying value of the Property, plant and equipment and other assets are listed below. The process of selling the said listed assets

expected to be completed on March 31, 2024.

Particulat As at As at
Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment (Land and building at Raipur (Previous yeat: Indore and Raipur) 1,323.40 2,988.53
Total assets 1,323.40 2,988.53
The net cash flows attributable to the business subject to slump sale are stated below:-
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Operating activities -
Investing activities -
Financing activities -

B During the previous year, the Group has classified Land and Building amounting to Rs. 2,271.33 Lacs located at Greater NOIDA, as assets held for sale in
accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-Cutrent assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations". The carrying value of asset held for sale as on the date of
agreement does not exceed the fair value less cost to sale and hence no impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Particular As ut aNs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment - 2,271.33
Total Assets - 2,271.33

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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58 Operating segments

A. Basis for Segmentation

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group'’s
structure. The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM'
organisation and mal

arc

nagement structure. The operating segments are t
lasly. All operating scgments’ operating results are reviewed r

3

14

to the segments and assess their performance.

The 'Board of Dircctors' have been ideatified as the CODM, since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the prep

key operating The operating seg

&

are based on the Group’s management and iaternal reporting

") identifies primary segments bascd on the dominaat source, naturc of risks and returns and the internal

preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any facility.

Previously the Group represent

0

[

ing of Cc

Y

ed the revenue and results of segments as under:
Test Prep (Partner and Digital) and Consumer Publishing,

(ii)Entesprise business comprising of Enterprise Institutional and Enterprisc Corporate,

(iti)Others comprise di

However, keeping in view the changes to the internal reporting done to the CODM, the Management of the Group has re

dK-12b

and scaled down Vocational Training business

consolidated financial results. Accordingly, the reportable scgments represent:

Reportable segments

EdTech: The Education segment of the Group comprising of business generated and serviced through educational service

MarTech: ‘The integrated solution driven

Customized Engagement Programs (CEPs), Manpower services and Sales management.

Others: The discont

dK-12b

B. Information about reportable segments
Segment assets, Segment liabilitics and Segment profit and loss are measured in the same way as in the financial statcments.

Information regarding the results of each reportable scgment is included below. Performance is

and scaled down Vocational training business.

d based on

jon and

ion of b

he segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss
egularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated

plan,

d the

d in the

&

profit (bef

&

s such as coaching, content and platform services.

services for corporates through Experiential marketing and Event management (physical and virtual events), Marcomm,

tax), as included in the internal

management reports that are reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors. Segment profit is uscd to measure performance as management believes that such information is

the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain scgments rel

ative to other entitics that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing, if any, is determined on an

arm's Jength basis.
Reportable seg
Year ended March 31, 2023 EdTech MarTech Others* Total
Scgment revenue 17,595.60 11,535.79 - 29,131.39
Revenue from external customers 17,595.60 11,535.79 - 29,131.39
Segment results 2,752.84 696.31 (134.62) 3,314.53
Segment asscts (refer note 58 C(iif)) 12,017.66 7,458.35 17,806.84 37,282.85
Segment liabilities (refer note 58 Cfiv)) 3,477.20 4,646.11 1,681.16 9,804.47
Reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2022 EdTech MarTech Others* Total
Segment revenue 13,103.67 7,813.38 20,917.05
R from | 13,103.67 7,813.38 - 20,917.05
Segment results 2,264.21 511.35 (112.14) 2,663.42
Segment assets (refer note 58 C(iii)) 11,026.28 4,555.64 19,196.14 34,778.06
Seg liabilities (refer note 58 C(iv)) 3,773.56 2,318.76 2,522.25 8,614.57
* Includes unallocated also
C. R ciliations of inf¢ on reportable segments Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
i Revenues
EdTech 17,595.60 13,103.67
MarTech 11,535.79 7,813.38
Others* - .
Total revenues 29,131.39 20,917.05
ii Profit before tax
Total Profit before tax for reportable segments 3,314.53 2,663.42
Other income 640.07 870.29
Unallocated expenses:
-Finance cost 160.40 35225
-Other expenses 1,863.25 1,420.95
Profit/(loss) before share of loss of equity d in , P | items and tax 1,930.95 1,760.36
Less: Exceptional items (refer note 47) 15.65 -
Loss of associates accounted for using equity method 1,915.30 1,760.36
Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the equity method (40.16) (37.59)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,875.13 1,722.77
Tax expense (379.27) 342.90
Profit/ (loss) after tax 2,254.40 1,379.87
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Di i d O
i

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(LLoss)/profit from discontinued operation before tax

Tax expense

(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange differcnce on translation of foreign operation

Income tax relating to above
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

iii Assects

EdTech
MarTech
Others*

Unallocated amounts

Total assets
iv Liabilities
EdTech

MarTech
Others*

Unallocated amounts

‘Total liabilities

D. Geographic information
"The geographic information analyses

the Group’s revenuc and non-cusrent assets by the Group’s cou

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a.01) 0.81)

.1 ©31)

199.02 54.80

434 32.60
(1.19) (8.53)

202.16 78.88

2,455.55 1,457.94

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

12,017.66 11,026.28

7.458.35 4,555.64

320.56 469.63

17,486.28 18,726.51
37,282.85 34,778.06

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

3,477.20 3,773.56

4,646.11 2,318.76

55.74 127.44

1,625.42 2,394.81

9,804.47 8,614.57

ntry of domicile in other countries. In presenting the geographic

information, segment revenuc has been based on the geographic location of customers and segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.

The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its rcvenue from external customers

a) Revenues from different geographies

Within India
Outside India

b) Non-custent asset®

Within India
Outside India

(This space has been intentionially It blank)

broken down by location of the customers is shown below:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26,224.45 18,578.48
2,906.94 2,338.57
29,131.39 20,917.05

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
14,923.97 10,338.24
1,584.96 400.42
16,508.93 10,738.66
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59. Fair value and fi ial i

a Fi ial i -by gory and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of fi tal 2ssets and fi ial liabilties, including their levels in the fair value hieraschy.
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measutement using

FVTPL FvOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-cutrent
Investments - - 60.00 60.00 - . -
Non-current bank balances (Deposits) - - 4,355.39 4,355.39 - - -
Other financial assets - - 254.49 254.49 - - -
Current
Trade receivables - - 6,963.49 6,963.49 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,500.84 2,500.84 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 3,865.78 3,865.78 - - -
Loans - 94.77 94.77 - - -
Other financial assets - - 1,464.08 1,464.08 - - -
‘Total - - 19,558.84 19,558.84 - - -
Financial liabilitics
Non-current
Borrowings - - 69.52 69.52 - -
Lease liability - - 336.24 336.24 - -
Current
Borrowings - - 975.45 97545 - - -
Lease liability - - 285.07 285.07 - - -
Trade payables - - 4,039.60 4,039, - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 912.04 912.04 - - -
‘Total - - 6,617.92 6,617.92 - - -
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Carrying value Fair value using
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Levell Tevel 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Non-curtent
Tovestments - - 628.73 628.73 - - -
Non-current bank balances (Deposits) - . 31448 314.48 - -
Other financial assets - - 125.25 125.25 - - -
Current
Investments 3,986.50 . - 3,986.50 - 3,986.50 -
Trade reccivables - - 4,994.57 4,994.57 . - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,519.03 1,519.03 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 584.35 584.35 . - -
Loans - - 1,301.08 1,301.08 - - -
Other financial assets - - 2,075.56 2,075.56 - - -
‘Total 3,986.50 - 11,543.05 15,529.55 - 3,986.50 -
Financial liabilities
Non-cucrent
Borrowings - 292.39 292.39 - - -
Lease liability - - 352.41 352.41 -
Current
Borrowings - 1,404.94 1,404.94 - - -
Lease liability - - 163.12 163.12 - - -
Trade payables - - 2,845.05 2,845.05 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 712.67 712.67 - - -
'Total - C - 5,770.58 5,770.58 - - -
The Group’s borrowings have been d at floating rates of i which sesets at short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such gs (including interest d but not due)
approxinates fair value.
The carrying of trade reccivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivaleats and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values, duc to theit short-term nature. Fair value of non-
current financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for rity after twelve hs from the reporting date) and ity deposics is smiliar to the carrying value as there is 00 significant differences
between carrying value and fair value.
There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
Valuati hnique used to d ine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value non current financial assets and liabilities for whom the fair values have been d ined based oo p values and the appropriate discount rates of the Group at
each balance sheet dae. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of borrowings of the Group at each balance sheet date.

b Financial risk manag
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk
* Liquidity risk
« Currency rate risk
* Interest rate risk
Risk management framework
The Group's Board of Di has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Di have authorised senior & to

establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line with the businesses of the group.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risks Jimits and controls, to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities,

)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amonnis are in Rupees Jacs, unless otherwise stated)

b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 6,963.49 4,994.57
Cash and cash equivalents 2,500.84 1,519.03
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,865.78 584.35
Loans 94.77 1,301.08
Other financial assets 1,464.08 2,075.56

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to 2 financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,

and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customess. The carrying amount of financi

exposure.

al assets represents the maximum credit

The Group's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customers. The Group maintains 2 defined credit policy and monitors the exposures to

these credit risks on an ongoing basis.
i, Credit risk on loans is limited as the loans are given to other related parties.

ii. Credit tisk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group invests in deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high credit ratings

assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and finan

rated AA to AAA from renowned rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receiva

cial institution, counterparties which are

bles. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived

from revenue earned from customers primarily located in India. The Group does monitor the economic enviorment in which it operates and the
Group manages its Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to

which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group establishes an allowance

for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The managem
lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss allowance, the Group estimates amounts based on th

ent uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on
e business environment in which the Group

operates, and management considers that the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) when couater party fails to make payments as per
terms of sale/service agreements. However the Group based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrying amount of trade receivables is Rs. 7235.10 lacs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 5,301.77 lacs). Trade receivables are generally realised within

the credit period.

The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment

behaviour.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Gross catrying amount

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Not Due 4,278.94 1,361.56
0-3 months past due 677.07 1,160.30
3-6 months past due 461.71 646.77
: l:lt).l.l.u.f 168.01 277.79
1-2 years 443.65 1,038.05
2-3 years 683.92 229.26
;VLULC ulan 521.80 588.04
Total 7,235.10 5,301.77
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning 307.20 269.61
Impairment loss recognised = 31.7M 37.59
Utilisadon/reversal of opening ECL //: R (67.30) -
Balance at the end /; 7K \ 271.61 307.20
‘,, ( \) @
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Match 31, 2023
(All amonnts are in Rapees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

b. Financial risk management (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

The Group believes that its liquidity position, including total cash (including baok deposits under lien and the anticipated future internally generated funds from
operations) will enable it to meet its furure known obligations in the ordinaty course of business.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Group's policy is to regularly monitot its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
funding from group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
The Group's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintainipg rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 years
year year and five
years
Botrowings
Secured
-From banks
a) Vehicle loans 95.45 95.45 2593 69.52 -
b) term loans 56.51 56.51 56.51 - -
Current borrowings
Secured :
-Cash credit from banks 851.70 851.70 851.70 - -
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.82 0.82 0.82 - -
Unsecured
-From others 19.57 19.57 19.57 - .
- from related parties 20.92 20.92 20.92 - -
Trade payables 4,039.60 4,039.60 3,369.73 669.87 -
Lease liability (current and non current) 621.31 621.31 285.07 336.24 -
Other financial liabilities
Unpaid dividend 2.56 2.56 2.56 - -
Payable for selling shareholders -28.06 28.06 28.06 = .
Employee related payables 851.81 851.81 851.81 - -
Receipt on behalf of clients 29.61 29.61 29.61 - -
Total 6,617.92 6,617.92 5,542.29 1,075.63 -

(This space has been intentionally lef? blant)




CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AN amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otberise stated)

As at March 31, 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 yeats
year year and five
years
Borrowings
Secured
-From banks
a) Vehicle loans 26.93 26.93 14.58 12.35 -
b) Term loans 445.44 445.44 166.67 278.77 -
-From others/ financial institution
2) Term loan 96.49 96.49 95.22 1.27 -
Current borrowings
Secured
-Cash credit from banks 1,106.50 1,106.50 1,106.50 - -
-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 327 3.27 327 - -
Unsecured
-from others 18.09 18.09 18.09 - -
- from related parties 0.61 0.61 0.61 -
Trade payables 2,845.05 2,845.05 2,490.08 354.97 -
Lease Liability (cutrent & non current) 515.53 515.53 163.12 352.41 -
Other financial liabilities
Unpaid dividend 2.56 2.56 2.56 - -
Payable for selling shareholders 28.06 28.06 28.06 = -
Employee related payables - 652.16 652.16 652.16 - -
Receipt on behalf of clients 29.89 29.89 29.89 - -
Total 5,770.58 5,770.57 4,770.80 999.77 -
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi ial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, nnless otherwise stated)

B. Financial risk management (continued)
iii. Market risk

Macket risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of

Currency risk

market risk namely: currency
tisk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market

Currency risk is the risk that the futuse cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects

of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its

financial position and cash flows to the extent of carnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure

arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

There are no derivative contracts entered by the Company. Hence, there is no associated risk.

Exposure to cutrency risk

“The summary of quantitative data about the Company'’s exposuse to cutrency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
AED Amount in AUD Amount in UsSD Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 43.39 971.09 - 1.58 129.71
Other financial asset 1.17 26.28 - - - -
Orther bank balances - - - - - -
44.57 997.37 - - 1.58 129.71
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other Liabilitics 2.21 49.45 - - 0.64 52.10
2.21 49.45 - - 0.64 52.10
Net exposure in respect of recognised asscts and liabilities 42.35 947.92 - - 0.94 77.61
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 .
AED Amount in AUD Amount in USD Amount in
INR INR INR
Financial assets
"Trade receivables 37.07 761.18 - 0.32 2397
Other financial asset 2.01 41.56 - -
Other bank balances - - - - - -
39.08 802.74 - - 0.32 23.97
Financial liabilities
"Trade payables and other Liabilitics 5.73 118.43 - - 0.25 19.09
5.73 118.43 - - 0.25 19.09
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 33.35 684.31 - - 0.07 4.88

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against

below currencies at March 31, 2023 and Marsch 31, 2022 would have affected the measurement of

financial instrumeats denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. ‘This analysis assumes that all othet variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

Pardiculars Profit or loss (in Rs. Lacs) Equity, net of tax

(in Rs. Lac)
Strengthening Strengthening | Weakening | Strengthening Weakeni
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian Rupees agaiast following
foreign currencies:
For the year ended March 31, 2023
AED 9.48 (9.48) 6.89 (6.89)
AUD - - - -
UsSD 0.78 (0.78) 0.56 (0.56)
Total 10.26 (10.26) 7.41 (7.47)
For the year ended March 31, 2022
AED 6.84 (6.84) 498 (4.98)
AUD - = - -
USD 0.05 (0.05) 0.04 (0.04)
Total 6.89 (6.89) 5.02 (5.02)

AED: United Arab Emirates Dirhans 9(/'.2’ Smgnpom\QoUu, USD: United States Dollar and AUD: Austrailian Dollar.
3 \
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1: dated Fi tal S
X

for the year ended March 31, 2023

B. Fi ial risk 2 t (continued)
Interest rate risk
Intesest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market intcrest rates. The Group’s main interest rate
risk arises from long-term and short term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. "These obligations exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to intetest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Variable-rate instruments As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Term loans from banks and others 56.51 541.93
Vehicle loans 96.27 30.64
Cash credit from banks 851.70 1,106.50
Total 1,004.48 1,679.07
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constaat.
Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease
Interest on loans from banks »
For the year ended March 31, 2023 2.61 2.61) 1.88 (1.88)
For the year ended March 31, 2022 10.65 (10.65) 7.69 (7.69)
Interest on loans from others
For the year ended March 31, 2023 - - - -
For the vear ended March 31, 2022 20.29 (20.29) 14.65 (14.65
60 Capital Management
2) For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the

Group.

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure and

makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to sharcholders, raisc new debt or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by
of the parent plus interest-bearing debs).

total capital (equity attributable to owners

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings (refer note 25 and 29) 1,044.97 1,697.33
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 2,500.84 1,519.03
Adjusted net debt (A) (1,455.88) 178.31
Total equity (B) 27,478.38 26,163.49
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) -5.30% 0.68%
/ / 5
/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amonnts are in Roppees lacs, unless othernise stated)

Interests in other entities
Subsidiaries
The Group’s subsidiaties at March 31, 2023 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held

directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also
their principal place of business.

Name of the Entity Place of Ownetship interest held by the | Ownership interest held by non
business/ counttry group as at controlling interests as at
of incorporation | March 31, 2023 |Match 31, 2022| March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% - -
Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited Singapore 99.94% 100.00% 0.06% -
Career Launchet Private Limited India 99.00% 100.00% 1.00% -
ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited India 69.50% 69.50% 30.50% 30.50%
Kestone CL US Limited USA 100.00% 100.00% - -
CL Educate (Africa) Limited Mauritius 90.00% 90.00% 10.00% 10.00%
PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia (w.e.f January 4, 2023) Indonesia- 100.00% - - -

Principal activities of group companies

Career Launchet Infrastructure Private Limited
Caseer Launcher Infrastucture Private Limited is engaged in the business of publishing study matetial and text books and other academic material.

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited

Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited provides integrated business, marketing and sales services to corporate customers (including event management), marketing support
(including digital marketing support in the form of online marketing initiatives, to suppost offline marketing campaigns), customer engagement (including audience
generation, lead generation, loyalty and reward programs and contest management), managed manpower and training services.

Cateer Launcher Private Limited

Career Launcher Private Limited was incorporated on Match 15, 2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 as a wholly owned subsidiary with the objective of
becoming the digital arm of the Career Launchet brand.

ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
“This mainly includes test prep coaching examinations like Graduate Aptitude Test in Engineering/Indian Engineering Services.

Kestone CL US Limited
Ketonte CL Asia Hub Pte. Ltd had incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in USA on March 22, 2018 in the name of Kestone CL US Limited with an objective
to provide Integrated sales and marketing services to the corporate and institutions in USA.

CL Educate (Africa) Limited
CL Educate (Africa) Limited is the subsidiary of Kestone CL US Limited with an objective to provide Integrated sales and marketing services to the corporate and
institutions in Mauritius.

PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia
PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia is the subsidiary of Kestone CL US Limited, is engaged mainly in experiential marketing and event management solutions, digital &
marketing commission services, Customized Engagement Programs (CEPs) and Strategic Business Solutions.

Associate Companies
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at Match 31, 2023 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the Group.
% of ownership interest Carrying amount
Name of entity Place of As at As at Accounting As at As at
business March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 method March 31,2023 Match 31, 2022
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Chennai, India ~ 11.71% of equity  11.71% of equity Equity 707.42 747.59
Private Limited shares shares
Total equity accounted investments 707.42 747.59
e ——
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Principal activities of associate entity

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited, the Company provides learning and education solutions for corporations, colleges and universities,
academic service providers, and government bodies in India and internatiopally. The Company offers graduation/diploma programs, as well as leadership programs

to corporate managers.

Significant judgement: existence of significant influence

Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited- Holding Company have representation on the boatd of Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting
Private Limited and right to nominate one Director on the Board, it also participates in all significant financial and operating decisions. The group has therefore

determined that it has significant influence over this entity, evea though it only holds 11.71% (March 31, 2022: 11.71%) of the voting rights.

The Group has an agreement with its associate that the profits of the associate will not be distributed until it obtains the consent of the Group. The Group does
not foresce giving such consent at the reporting date. The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Summarised financial information for associates

The tables below provide summarised financial information for the associate. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the relevant associate and not CL. Educate Limited’s share of those amouats. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the

equity method and modifications for differences in accounting policies, if any.

Summarised balance sheet As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Total current assets 568.40 882.33
Total non-current assets 88.92 131.46
Total assets 657.32 1,013.79
Total cutrent liabilities 147.70 160.15
Total non-curgent liabilities 118.09 123.45
Total liabilities 265.79 283.61
Net assets 391.53 730.18
Summarised statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
Matrch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue 21245 314.22
Interest income 2.07 2.28
Intetest expense 3712 28.23
Depreciation and amortisation 7213 111.94
Tax expense - -
Loss for the year (342.90) (320.90)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income (342.90) (320.90)
Reconciliation to carrying amount of investments As at As at
Match 31,2023 March 31, 2022
I[nvestments in associate 674.57 674.57
Gain on fair valuation 112.43 112.43
Loss after the period of acquisition (82.74) (43.33)
Group’s share in the loss since acquisition (79.58) (39.41)
Catrying amount of investments in the associate 707.42 747.59

\ 7
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(AUl amonnts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group. The amounts
disclosed for the subsidiary are before inter-Group eliminations.

i. ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited

Summarised balance sheet As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current assets 119.05 84.82
Non-current assets 229.08 213.99
Total assets 348.13 298.81
Current liabilities 362.64 300.18
Non-cusrent liabilities 1.07 11.90
Total liabilities 363.71 312.08
Net assets (15.58) (13.27)
% of Non controlling interest 30.50% 30.50%
Accumulated NCI 1.27 (0.76)
Summatised statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue 122.78 239.23
Other income 7.88 9.36
Interest expense 298 9.73
Depreciation and amortisation 37.98 33.82
Tax expense (13.48) (17.36)
Loss for the year 6.67) (46.00)
Other comprehensive income - 212
Total comprehensive income (6.67) (43.88)
Loss allocated to NCI (2.03) (13.26)
Summarised cash flow Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from operating activities 13.97 26.69
Cash flows from investing activities (39.02) (38.47)
Cash flows from financing activities 23.68 5.33
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1.37) (6.46)

iii. Transactions with non-controlling interest

The Group had acquited 50.70% stake in ICE GATE Educational Institute Private Limited on October 31, 2017. On 13 August 2019, the Group
acquired an additional 7.15% stake and 1.10% on 2 March 2020 for Rs. 76.32 Lacs. Immediately prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests acquired i.e. 8.25% NCI was (Rs. 5.54 lacs). The effect on the equity attributable to the owners of the Group during the year is

summarised as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired - -
Consideration paid to non-controlling intetests - -
Excess of consideration paid recognised in retained earnings within equity - -

[ ( (This space has been intentionally Ieft blank)
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. Other investments in equity shares

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
Match 31, 2023
Unquoted, measured at FVTPL - non trade
8,817 (March 31, 2022: 8,817) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of B&S Strategy Services 20.00
Private Limited *
447 (March 31, 2021: Nil) fully paid up equity shates of Rs. 10 each of Evue Technologies Private 40.00
Limited

588.73

40.00

*The investment has been measured at fair value through profit and loss using the latest financial information available with the Group.

* During the year, the Holding Company has sold the investment to one of its bider company at arm's length price and the same is approved by the
Boatd on its meeting held in December 28, 2022. The loss incured on sale recogaised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 47)
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Income tax

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

For the yeat ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax expense
Cugrent year 301.81 291.08
301.81 291.08
Deferred tax
Current year (681.08) 51.81
(681.08) 51.81
Total tax expense/ (credit) (379.27) 342.90
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to exchange difference on translation of foreign operation -
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.19) (8.53)
(1.18) (8.53)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
Match 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rate# Amount Rate# Amount
Profit /(loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,875.13 1,722.77
(Loss) / profit before tax from discontinuing operations (1.01) (0.81)
Total profit/ (loss) before tax 27.82% 1,874.13 27.82% 1,721.97
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 521.38 479.05
Tax effect of:
Brought forward losses (130.63) (82.95)
Minimum Alternate Tax .
Permanent difference
-Non- deductible expenses (486.47) -
-Others 17.98 (48.35)
Change in recognised timing difference (320.07) -
Tax adjustments relating to catlier years 18.54 (4.86)
(900.65) (136.15)
Tax expense recognise in consolidated statement of profit and loss (A)+(B) (379.27) 342.90

# includes surcharge

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets
Loans
Trade receivable
Deemed equity and other comprehensive income
Lease liability
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for employee incentive
Other current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Other financial liabilitics
Carried forward losses
MAT credit entitlement
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Right of use assets

Other intangible assets

Asset held for sale

Investment in subsidiary and associates

Other non-current assets

Provision on inventory

Other current assets

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Year ended March 31, 2023
As at Recognizedin  Recognized in OCI As at
March 31, 2022 P&L March 31, 2023
8.00 8.00 - -
77.26 9.88 - 67.38
53.00 27.67 - 2533
143.00 (29.85) - 172.85
126.22 (49.35) 1.19 174.37
128.00 (6.76) - 134.76
23.53 (0.36) - 23.89
31.00 23.30 - 7.70
- (34.61) - 34.61
1,091.19 262.84 - 828.35
625.88 (144.18) - 770.06
2,307.08 66.58 1.19 2,239.30
38597 285.40 - 100.57
118.00 (28.00) - 146,00
128.00 (39.31) - 167.31
378.00 378.00 - -
72.00 37.09 - 34.91
5.00 2.36 - 2.64
19.00 102.12 - (83.12)
10.00 10.00 - -
1,115.97 747.66 - 368.31
1,191.11 (681.08) 1.19 1,871.00
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AU amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

. Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

Loans

Trade receivable

Deemed equity and other comprehensive income
Lease liability

Provision for employee benefit

Provision for employee incentive

Other custent liabilities

Propetty, plant and equipment and investment property
Catried forward losses

MAT credit entitlement

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investment property

Right of use asscts

Other intangible assets

Asset held for sale

Investment in subsidiary and associates
Other non-current assets

Provision on inventory

Other current asscts

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Total deferred rax assets net of deferred tax liabilities*
Total deferred tax liabilities net of deferred tax assets*

*cannot be legally set-off, hence shown separately

. Tax losses carried forward

Expire
Expire
Expire
Expire
Expire
Never expire
Total

Year ended March 31, 2022
Asat Recognizedin  Recognized in OCI As at
Match 31, 2021 P&L March 31, 2022
13.00 5.00 - 8.00
67.00 (10.26) - 77.26
46.00 (7.00) - 53.00
73.00 (70.00) - 143.00
166.46 33.19 7.05 126.22
104.00 (24.00) - 128.00
18.38 (5.15) - 23.53
- (31.00) - 31.00
1,360.30 269.11 1,091.19
394.27 (231.61) - 625.88
2,242.41 (71.72) 7.05 2,307.08
737.43 363.53 - 385.97
" 45.00 (73.00) - 118.00
104.00 (24.00) - 128.00
5.00 (373.00) - 378.00
72.00 - - 72.00
5.00 - - 5.00
4.00 (15.00) - 19.00
15.00 5.00 - 10.00
987.43 (116.47) - 1,115.97
1,254.98 44.76 7.05 1,191.10
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,871.00 1,191.10
1,871.00 1,191.10
March 31,2023 Expiry date March 31, 2022 Expiry date
- - 34.75 2023
- - 93.82 2024
- - 35.31 2025
- - 101.70 2026
- - 398.05 2029
2,462.10 - 3,467.61 =
2,462.10 4,131.25
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupecs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Additional regulatory information requited by Schedule I

i. The Group does not have any Benami propesty, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
ii. The Group does not have aay transactions with companies struck off.
iii. The Group is in the process of satisfying the charges of Rs. 24.00 lacs by HDEC Bank and Rs. 750.00 lacs by finaacial institution with ROC in respect of
which Joan amount is already paid out.

iv. The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other pesson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign eatities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiarics), or
(b) provide any guarantce, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vi.The Group has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

(2 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
vii. The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendesed or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii. All title deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Company.

ix. The Group has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India..
x. The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

On 27 November 2018, the Holding Company had filed a Scheme of Amalgamation under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companics
Act, 2013 for the merger of five of its wholly owned Indian subsidiarics, with the Holding Company with an appointed datc of 1 April 2019. The Holding
Company received the requisite regulatory approvals, and the merger became effective on 05 March 2022 on filing the certified copies of the orders sanctioning
the scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal. This transaction was accounted as per approved scheme of arrangement, however, the accounting
prescribed in the approved scheme was not in accordance with the accounting treatment as per applicable Appendix C to Indian Accounting Standard (Tod AS)
103 prescribed under prescribed under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013, read with relevant rules and interpretations issued thereunder. The Holding
Company followed basic principles of consolidation and performed line by line consolidation which resulted in recognition of amalgamation adjustment deficit
account by Rs. 2,264.54 Lacs in the consolidated financial statements instead of goodwill for the same amount which cxisted in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as at 31 March 2021 in respect of the aforesaid wholly owned subsidiaries prior to such merger.

During the financial year 2017-18, Caseer Launcher Education Iafrastructure and Services Limited, then a wholly owned subsidiary (Pursuant to the Merger
Order, the subsidiary has been merged with the holding company) entered into an agrecment to sell its School Business vertical (K-12 Business) to B&S Strategy
Services Private Limited (B&S) for a total consideration of Rs. 4,650 lacs comprising Rs. 600 lacs payable in cash and remaining Rs. 4,050 lacs by way of equity
shares in B&S. Presently the sharcholding in B&S, is 8,817 cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach, being 44.18% of total cquity of B&S. Further, an overdue amount of Rs.
416.18 lacs is recoverable from B&S towards cash consideration as per the aforesaid agreement, with the amount now being considerably overdue despite
repeated reminders to the B&S Management.

The Holding Compaay has taken legal advice and initiated legal proceedings before the Honourable Delhi High Coust, to protect its interests, including recovery
of Rs. 416.18 lacs of the cash consideration. A section 9 petition on the matter of CLEIS vs B&S was heard by Delhi High Coust. The Honourable Delhi High
Court on June 22, 2020 appointed a retired High Court Judge as an arbitrator to hear the dispute. The arbitrator has rejected the counter claim of the respondent
(B&S Strategy Services Private Limited). Final arguments have been addressed by both the pardcs. The Holding Company has received the award in previous year
which is expected to be realised.

In current year, the net recoverable amounting to Rs. 361.18 lacs has been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Although the Holding Company has
prudently written off the amount, it does not relinquish its right to pursue legal action against B&S Strategy Services Private Limited.

There is a trade receivable due to Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited (“CLIP”) from the Nalanda Foundation of Rs. 525 Lacs, who had licensed
school infrastructure from CLIP in Indore and Raipur but failed to mect its payment obligations. Due to a considerable delay by the Nalanda Foundation in
mectings its obligations, despite repeated reminders, CLIP has initated legal proccedings against them for rccovery of dues and return of asscts, with the
Honousable Delhi High Court. The Honourable Delhi High Court had instructed Nalanda Foundation to return the assets to CLIP and appointed an arbitrator
to hear the dispute. The land assets were returned as per the order of the High Court. The hearings in the matter have been concluded and the order is reserved.

The Members of the Holding Company at the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 07, 2021, had approved the sub-division of cach fully
paid-up equity share of the Company of face value of Rs.10/- into 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of Face Value of Rs.5/- cach w.e.f. October 01, 2021
(Record date). Consequently, on October 1, 2021, the equity shases of the Holding Company have been sub-divided from 1,41,65,678 at face value of Rs. 10

(Ten) each fully paid to 2,83,31,356 at face value of Rs. 5 (five) each fully paid.
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al anounts are in Rupees lacs, wnless otherwise stated)

The Board of Directors of the Group at its meeting held on May 19, 2022, had approved the buyhack of fally paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 5/- cach
from its sharcholders / beneficial owners (Other than those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or persons in control) from the open market
through stock exchange mechanism for an aggiegate amount not exceeding Rs. 1,000 Lacs (Indian Rupees One Thousand Lacs only).

"The buyback started on May 27, 2022, a0d was concluded on July 29, 2022. The Holding Company has completed the buyback of 797,200 Equity shares at an
average price of Rs 125.42.

The buyback tax and other related expenses of buyback have been adjusted against the other equity as per applicable sections of the Company’s Act 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on November 02, 2022 had approved and recommended a Bonus Issue of Equity Shares in the Ratio

of 1:1 ie. 1 (one) Equity Share of Rs. 5/- (Rs. Five only) each be issued for every 1 (one) existing Equity Share of Rs. 5/- (Rs. Five only) each held by the
Sharcholders of the Company, as on the Record Date.

a. The Company has increased its Authotized Share capital from Rs. 2,728 Lacs consisting of 54,560,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each to Rs. 4,000 Lacs consisting
of 80,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each.

b. The Sharcholders of the Company approved the issue of Bonus Equity Shares via Postal Ballot on December 04, 2022.

¢. On December 19, 2022, the management committee allotted 27,534,156 equity shares of face valuc Rs 5 each as bonus shares in proportion of one bonus
equity share of face value Rs. 5 each for every one equity share of face value of Rs 5 each held on record date. The Bonus Shares were listed on BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. Deccmber 30, 2022.

d. Earnings Per Shate have been adjusted for all the respective periods as increased for issuance of bonus shares.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by board of directors on May 10, 2023.

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged as per the current year’s presentation for the purpose of comparability.

As per report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CL Educate Limited
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